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“Every building at Cypress posts our mission statement, which calls for $1 billion in sales 
and $250 million in pre-tax profits. We plan to achieve those goals in the year 2000.”

T.J. Rodgers, 1999 Annual Report

Driving the Communications RevolutionTM

Excludes effects of mergers prior to merger date.
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Cypress customers have helped us to define highly integrated communications system solutions. 

This example shows the integration of a backplane solution for a line card used in routers, switching or 

storage systems. All of Cypress’s core product competencies are used: physical layer, programmable

logic and optical design. Integration increases performance and saves our customers valuable board

space and material cost in the creation of electronics subsystems.



















Selected Consolidated Financial Data
(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

(Unaudited) Year Ended(1, 2)

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

Operating Results:

Revenues $ 1,287,787 $ 745,042  $ 588,915  $ 632,969 $ 600,032
Restructuring, acquisition and 

other non-recurring costs, net  55,729 34,091  60,737  13,551  10,932

Operating income (loss) 328,839  51,607  (115,559)  4,324 51,282
Income (loss) before income taxes 370,170  95,169  (112,702)  9,305  52,888

Net income (loss) 277,308  88,130  (101,594)  3,196  22,412

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $ 2.29 $ 0.81 $ (0.97)  $ 0.03 $ 0.24

Diluted $ 2.03 $ 0.76 $ (0.97)  $ 0.03 $ 0.23

Weighted average common
and common equivalent
shares outstanding:

Basic  121,126  108,156  105,238  102,920  92,317

Diluted  144,228  115,527  105,238  110,820 97,767

Balance sheet data:

Cash, cash equivalents and
   short-term investments $ 884,601  $ 280,947  $ 174,513  $ 213,939 $ 98,353

Working capital  983,359  360,639  250,889  319,836  126,985

Total assets  2,361,754  1,146,958  850,645  1,000,597  844,118
Long-term debt and 
   capital lease obligations
   (excluding current portion) 631,055  170,884  170,540  188,467  106,607
Stockholders’ equity $ 1,327,668  $ 718,620  $ 517,825  $ 658,643 $ 514,287

(1)We operate on a 52- or 53-week fiscal year. Fiscal years 2000 and 1999 were 52-week fiscal years ending
on the Sunday closest to December 31. 1998 was a 53-week fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to
December 31. Fiscal years 1996 and 1997 were 52-week fiscal years ending on the Monday closest to
December 31.

(2)The preceding table presents financial information including the eight acquisitions completed in fiscal 1999
and 2000. See Notes 3 and 4 of the financial statements for discussions of the acquisitions, which may
affect the comparability of the data.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations
This report may contain forward-looking statements, within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, about the pros-
pects for Cypress as well as the semiconductor industry more generally, including without limita-
tion, statements about increases in gross margin, rate of growth of research and development
expenditures as a percent of revenues, rate of growth of selling, general and administrative
expenses, profitability goals, revenue goals, growth rate goals, market share goals, market size and
growth projections, new product introductions, planned manufacturing capacity, and efficiency and
cost goals. Actual results could differ materially from those described in the forward-looking state-
ments as a result of various factors including, but not limited to, the factors identified in Risk
Factors.

Overview

(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

Cypress achieved record annual revenues of approximately $1.3 billion for fiscal year 2000, the
first billion-dollar year in the company’s history. In addition, Cypress reached another long stand-
ing goal by exceeding $250 million in pre-tax profits. Cypress is proud to have grown revenue at a
rate of 72.8% in 2000, twice the semiconductor industry growth rate of 36%.

On November 30, 2000, the Board of Directors of Cypress authorized the repurchase of 5 million
shares of Cypress’s outstanding common stock, which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbol “CY.” On December 21, 2000, the Board of Directors of Cypress authorized the
repurchase of an additional 5 million shares of Cypress’s outstanding common stock, bringing the
total shares authorized in the repurchase program to 10 million. As of December 31, 2000, 6.3 mil-
lion shares had been repurchased at an average cost of $22.90 per share. In conjunction with the
stock repurchase program, the Board of Directors authorized the sale of up to 2.5 million put war-
rants. As of December 31, 2000, Cypress had sold put warrants through private placements for
which Cypress received $6.3 million. Cypress has a maximum potential obligation to purchase 1.5
million shares of its common stock at an aggregate price of $35.5 million as of December 31, 2000.
The put warrants have various expiration periods from March 2001 through September 2001.
Cypress has the right to settle the put warrants with cash or settle the difference between the exer-
cise price and the fair market value at the exercise date with stock or cash. No amount was classi-
fied out of stockholders’ equity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

On September 7, 2000, Cypress called for the redemption of all its 6.0% Convertible Subordinated
Notes (“Notes”) due in 2002. The aggregate amount of principal outstanding at the time of the call
was approximately $160 million. Holders of the Notes could convert their Notes into shares of
Cypress’s common stock at a conversion rate of approximately 42.33 shares of stock per $1,000
principal amount of the Notes. Substantially all of the Notes were converted prior to the redemption
deadline of October 2, 2000, increasing the amount of common stock outstanding by 6.8 million
shares. 

On August 30, 2000, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Silicon Light
Machines (“SLM”). SLM is a supplier of microelectromechanical systems (“MEMS”) technology
applicable to fiber-optic networks and other applications. The acquisition was accounted for using
purchase accounting. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed were included in Cypress’s consolidated balance sheet as of August 30, 2000, the effec-
tive date of the purchase. There were no significant differences between the accounting policies of
Cypress and SLM. Cypress acquired SLM for a total consideration of $164.0 million, including
$161.2 in stock, an existing $2.2 million investment, and direct acquisition costs of $0.6 million for
legal and accounting fees. 

Year Ended % Increase

December 31,
2000

January 2,
 2000

January 3,
 1999

1999 to
2000

1998 to
2000

Revenue $ 1,287,787 $ 745,042 $ 588,915 72.8% 118.7%

Net Income (Loss) 277,308 88,130 (101,594) 214.7% 373.0%

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 2.03 $ 0.76 $ (0.97) 167.1% 309.3%
��



On July 7, 2000, Cypress entered into an agreement with Mosel Vitelic (“Mosel”) to jointly develop
a 0.12-micron process technology to be deployed initially in Cypress’s R&D Fab in San Jose.
Under the agreement, Mosel engineers will work with Cypress’s existing Fab 1 research and devel-
opment team on defining a 0.12-micron manufacturing process. Cypress and Mosel also agreed
over time to share some of the costs of purchasing new equipment to facilitate tighter process
geometries. The agreement will allow Cypress and Mosel to continue to offer cutting-edge process
technology, which we expect will produce new high-performance, market-leading products more
economically and quickly.

On June 29, 2000, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of RadioCom Corporation
(“RadioCom”), a corporation specializing in the design and development of semiconductor radio
frequency (“RF”) integrated circuits. The acquisition was accounted for using purchase accounting,
and the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were included in Cypress’s consoli-
dated financial statements as of June 29, 2000, the effective date of the purchase. Cypress acquired
RadioCom for total consideration of $10.2 million in stock.

On June 26, 2000, Cypress completed a $287.5 million registered-placement of 5-year convertible
subordinated notes. The notes are due in the year 2005, with a coupon rate of 3.75% and an initial
conversion premium of 27%. The notes are convertible into approximately 4.6 million shares of
common stock and are callable by Cypress no earlier than July 5, 2003. Net proceeds were $279.6
million, after issuance costs of $7.9 million.

On May 24, 2000, Cypress completed its merger with Alation Systems, Inc. (“Alation”) a corpora-
tion engaged in the design, development and marketing of wireless home networking products and
technologies. Cypress issued 0.5 million shares of its common stock plus options in exchange for
all outstanding stock and options of Alation. The transaction was accounted for as a pooling of
interests. The fiscal years of Cypress and Alation were different, and Alation has changed its fiscal
periods to coincide with that of Cypress.

On March 2, 2000, Cypress completed its merger with Galvantech, Inc. (“Galvantech”), which was
accounted for as a pooling of interests. Cypress issued 3.0 million shares of its common stock plus
options in exchange for all outstanding stock and options of Galvantech. The fiscal years of
Cypress and Galvantech were different and Galvantech has changed its fiscal periods to coincide
with that of Cypress. Galvantech specializes in ultra-high performance memories for data commu-
nications applications.

On February 25, 2000, Cypress sold its Fast CMOS Technology (“FCT”) business including inven-
tories, product software, all technical data, and a license for the related intellectual property. Total
proceeds from the sale were $7.5 million and Cypress recorded a gain of $5.0 million from the sale.
In conjunction with this sale, Cypress entered into a supply agreement for the related existing
inventories and future requirements, based on historical run rates. Cypress has continued to supply
product through the end of fiscal 2000, and completed its obligations under the supply agreement
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000. Revenues from FCT products were approximately 1% of
our 1999 revenues.

On January 31, 2000, Cypress filed a universal shelf registration statement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The registration statement, which was effective February 8, 2000, allows
Cypress to market and sell up to $400.0 million of its securities. The shelf registration statement
allows Cypress flexibility to raise funds from the offering of debt securities, common stock, pre-
ferred stock or a combination thereof, subject to market conditions and Cypress's capital needs. In
June 2000, Cypress completed a $287.5 million registered-placement of 5-year convertible subordi-
nated notes. At December 31, 2000, the balance remaining related to the shelf registration state-
ment is $112.5 million. 

On January 19, 2000, Cypress completed a $283.0 million registered-placement of 5-year convert-
ible subordinated notes. The notes are due in the year 2005, with a coupon rate of 4.00% and an ini-
tial conversion premium of 28.5%. The notes are convertible into approximately 6.1 million shares
of common stock and are callable by Cypress no earlier than February 5, 2003. Net proceeds were
$275.2 million, after issuance costs of $7.8 million.
��
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Results of Operations
Revenues

Revenues for fiscal 2000 were $1,287.8 million, an increase of $542.7 million or 72.8% compared
to revenues for fiscal 1999, and an increase of $698.9 million or 118.7% compared to revenues for
fiscal 1998. Cypress derives its revenues from the sale of Memory Products and Non-memory
Products, which are primarily targeted to the data communications and computation markets.

(In thousands)

Revenues from the sale of Memory Products for fiscal 2000 increased $329.1 million or 106.5%
over revenues from the sale of these products for fiscal 1999 and increased $408.5 million, or
177.9% compared to fiscal 1998. The increase in Memory Product revenues, as compared to fiscal
1999, resulted from both higher average selling prices (“ASPs”) and an increase in unit sales. ASPs
grew 47.9% from fiscal 1999 to fiscal 2000 and unit sa1es increased 39.6% over the same period.
When comparing fiscal 2000 to fiscal 1998, unit sales volume of Memory Products increased
68.5%, and ASPs increased 65.0%. The increase in unit sales in fiscal 2000 can be attributed pri-
marily to new product revenues, particularly in the 4 Meg synchronous family, which includes the
No Bus Latency (“NoBL”) static random access memories (“RAM”s), the 2 and 4 Meg More Bat-
tery Life (“MoBL”) and the 1 Meg micro-power family of products. The synchronous demand was
driven by the surge in the networking market, while sales for MoBL and other micro-power devices
were driven by growth in the cellular phone market. High ASPs are a result of strong demand for
static RAMs and the continuing increase in the average density (Mbits/unit) of static RAM prod-
ucts sold.

Revenues in 2000 from the sale of Non-memory products increased $213.6 million or 49.0% from
1999 and grew $290.4 million or 80.8% from 1998. The growth was predominantly unit related and
can be attributed to the market acceptance of Cypress’s Physical Layer (“PHY”), data communica-
tion, clock and USB products. Key products in the portfolio include our HOTLink optical trans-
ceivers, the Roboclock family of clock buffers, our low skew and low jitter programmable clocks,
our broad portfolio of specialty multi-port memories and our plug and play USB devices. 

As is typical in the semiconductor industry, ASPs of products generally decline over the lifetime of
the products. To increase revenues, Cypress seeks to expand its market share in the markets it cur-
rently serves and to introduce and sell new products with higher ASPs. Cypress will seek to remain
competitive with respect to its pricing to prevent a further decline in sales.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues for fiscal 2000 were 43.9% of revenues, compared to 54.9% of revenues for fiscal
1999 and 72.9% of revenues for fiscal 1998. The decrease in cost of revenues as a percent of reve-
nues was primarily due to a significant increase in unit sales, resulting in a lower fixed cost per unit
sold and to the introduction of new products with higher margins.

Cost of revenues for fiscal 1998 included one-time non-recurring charges totaling $21.7 million.
These charges included $15.8 million related to the write-down of inventory, $3.8 million for the
write-off of pre-operating costs and $2.1 million for the write-off of certain equipment. The $15.8
million charge for incremental inventory reserves arose due to market conditions resulting in the
ongoing over-supply and continued inventory corrections by end-user customers.

The write-off of pre-operating costs included $2.9 million related to Cypress’s wafer fabrication oper-
ation in Bloomington, Minnesota and $0.9 million related to its assembly and test operations in the
Philippines. As a result of the restructuring activities, Cypress wrote off its previously capitalized pre-
operating costs as an impaired asset due to uncertainties surrounding their future economic benefits. 

The write-off of equipment was related to equipment identified as obsolete during Cypress's peri-
odic review of equipment and no longer considered usable. Excluding these one-time non-recurring
charges, cost of revenues as a percent of revenues for fiscal 1998 would have been 69.8%. 

Year Ended % Increase

 December 31,
2000

January 2,
 2000

January 3,
 1999

1999 to
2000

1998 to
2000

Memory Products $ 638,111 $ 309,002 $ 229,581 106.5% 177.9%

Non-memory Products 649,676 436,040 359,334 49.0% 80.8%

Total Revenues $1,287,787 $     745,042 $ 588,915 72.8% 118.7%
��



Cypress continues to introduce new products and find new methods of reducing manufacturing
costs in order to mitigate the effects of typically declining ASPs on its gross margin. In March
1998, Cypress announced restructuring activities for its domestic wafer fabrication facilities and
offshore back-end manufacturing operations. Activities completed to date have increased Cypress's
manufacturing efficiencies and as a result, its gross margin has been increasing since the first quar-
ter of fiscal 1998. Cypress completed these restructuring activities in fiscal year 2000.

Research and Development

(In thousands, except percent)

Research and development (“R&D”) expenditures increased from fiscal 1998 through fiscal 2000
as Cypress continued its effort to accelerate the development of new products and migrate to more
advanced process technologies. In fiscal 2000, spending in Cypress's design centers grew due to
increased headcount and capital spending. R&D efforts associated with the acquisitions of Alation,
RadioCom and SLM also contributed to the increase in fiscal 2000. During fiscal 2000, Cypress
began utilizing the 0.15-micron process technology for manufacturing purposes, and started devel-
opment of 0.12-micron process technologies. Cypress believes that its future success will depend
on its ability to develop and introduce new products that will compete effectively on the basis of
price, performance, and ability to address customer needs. In fiscal 2000, Cypress completed the
conversion of its San Jose R&D wafer fab from a six-inch facility into an eight-inch facility; there-
fore, the R&D facility is compatible with the technologically advanced wafer fab in Minnesota.
This conversion has helped speed the pace of advanced technology transfers to production.

Selling, General and Administrative

(In thousands, except percent)

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) spending increases from fiscal 1998 to fiscal 2000
have been driven primarily by increased selling and marketing expenses. The increase in selling
expenses is primarily due to commission expenses, which have risen in proportion to our revenue
growth. In addition, the marketing area has increased expenditures due to building a worldwide
infrastructure that can support a multi-billion dollar corporation. Legal and professional costs
related to patent infringement litigation (including the successful defense of the EMI lawsuit in
1999), patent filing and our tax-rate optimization program have contributed to increases in adminis-
trative costs over the three-year period. 

Acquisition, Restructuring and Other Non-Recurring Costs

(In thousands)

During fiscal 2000, Cypress recorded acquisition and merger-related costs of $54.3 million. Costs
of $39.9 million were incurred in relation to the acquisition of Silicon Light Machines (“SLM”),
which was completed on August 30, 2000. SLM acquisition costs consisted of $30.5 million for in-
process research and development, and $9.4 million for the amortization of intangible assets. Addi-
tional costs related to the amortization of intangible assets from the previous acquisitions of Anchor

Year Ended % Increase

December 31,
2000

January 2,
 2000

January 3,
 1999

1999 to
2000

1998 to
2000

Revenues $ 1,287,787 $ 745,042 $ 588,915 72.8% 118.7%

Research and development $ 184,471 $ 136,858 $ 116,871 34.8% 57.8%

R&D as percent of revenues 14.3% 18.4% 19.9%

Year Ended % Increase

December 31,
2000

January 2,
 2000

January 3,
 1999

1999 to
2000

1998 to
2000

Revenues $ 1,287,787 $ 745,042 $ 588,915 72.8% 118.7%

Selling, general and administrative $ 153,909 $ 113,601 $ 97,267 35.5% 58.2%

SG&A as percent of revenues 12.0% 15.2% 16.5%

Year Ended

 December 31,
2000

January 2,
 2000

January 3,
 1999

Acquisition costs $ 54,250 $ 13,673 —

Non-recurring costs 1,964 24,229 —

Restructuring costs (485) (3,811) 60,737

Acquisition, restructuring and other non-recurring costs, net $ 55,71629 $ 34,091 $ 60,737
��



Chips, Inc. (“Anchor”), Arcus Technology (USA) and Arcus Technology (India) Limited (referred
to as “Arcus” on a combined basis), the MAX 5000 Programmable Logic Device (“PLD”) product
line from Altera, and RadioCom were $8.9 million. Acquisition costs of $3.5 million were incurred
in relation to the acquisitions of Galvantech, Alation, and RadioCom, which consist primarily of
non-cash deferred compensation charges, legal, accounting and investment banking fees. In addi-
tion, Cypress recorded $2.0 million for in-process research and development due to the acquisition
of RadioCom.

Cypress incurred a one-time charge of $2.0 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2000 due to the
acceleration of contractual obligations related to the Arcus acquisition.

During fiscal 2000, Cypress reversed $0.5 million of previously provided restructuring costs
related to the decision to close down the Cypress (ICW) wafer fab located in San Jose, California.
Cypress determined in the second quarter of fiscal 2000 that no outstanding commitments related
to this restructuring existed.

During fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded a net $34.1 million in restructuring, merger and acquisition,
and other non-recurring costs. These one-time, non-recurring costs included a $12.3 million write-
off of a manufacturing asset that was not being used and was subsequently scrapped and an $11.9
million one-time compensation charge. In the first quarter of fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded one-time
charges of $3.7 million associated with the merger with IC WORKS. These charges were for invest-
ment banking fees and other professional fees. Cypress also recorded $8.8 million in costs associ-
ated with the purchase of Anchor and Arcus consisting of $4.0 million for in-process technology,
$1.6 million for transaction costs and $3.2 million in amortization of intangible assets. During the
fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, Cypress acquired Altera’s MAX 5000 Programmable Logic Device
product line and its equity interest in Cypress’s wafer fabrication facility in Round Rock, Texas. As
part of the transaction, Cypress recorded intangible assets associated with the product rights and
incurred a charge of $0.3 million for the amortization of these intangibles. Transaction costs and
non-cash compensation costs incurred for other acquisitions were $0.8 million. These non-recurring
charges were offset by a reversal of $3.0 million of the 1998 restructuring reserve. The reversed
charges related to $2.2 million of severance and other employee related charges and $0.3 million for
the provision for phase-down and completion of the Alphatec restructuring activities. Cypress also
reversed $0.5 million of the 1998 restructuring reserve for other fixed asset related charges that were
no longer considered necessary. During fiscal 1999, Cypress reversed $0.7 million of the 1996
restructuring reserve related to fixed asset de-installation charges that were no longer required.

During 1998, Cypress implemented an overall cost reduction plan and recorded a $58.9 million
restructuring reserve. The restructuring entailed:

• The shutdown of Fab 3, located in Bloomington, Minnesota and consolidation of parts of Fab 
3 operations with other operations of Cypress.

• The discontinuance of the 0.6 micron 256K static RAM production in Fab 2 located in Texas.

• The conversion of an existing research and development fab located in San Jose (Fab 1) to 
eight-inch capability in order to be compatible with the state of the art eight-inch Minnesota 
manufacturing facility.

• The transfer of Cypress's test operations from its subcontractor, Alphatec, in Thailand to 
Cypress's production facility in the Philippines.

• The restructuring activities described above include the termination of approximately 850 
manufacturing employees primarily from Cypress and Alphatec.

FAB 3 — The charge related to the shutdown of Fab 3 was $30.2 million. Of this amount, $26.0
million related to the write-down of equipment held for sale, $1.7 million of other fixed asset
related charges for incremental third party costs expected to be incurred in the eventual physical
removal of the written down assets, $1.1 million related to severance and other employee related
costs and $1.4 million related to inventory.

Fab 3 assets, which were not upgradable to eight-inch capability, were written down based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets and the salvage value of the assets. The estimated useful lives
were generally two months as a result of the decision to discontinue production in Fab 3 and the
salvage value was determined based on the estimated sales value of used semiconductor equip-
ment. Non-upgradable Fab 3 assets were depreciated down to their salvage value during the pro-
duction phase-down period. Fab 3 assets, which were upgradable to eight-inch capability, were
transferred to Fab 4 production during the third quarter of 1998.
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In accordance with the restructuring plan, Fab 3 production was phased down beginning in the sec-
ond quarter of 1998 and ceased operations in July 1998. From this time, Cypress has held the non-
upgradable equipment for sale. As of December 31, 2000, no equipment remains on hand. Cypress
recorded a gain of $2.4 million in fiscal 2000 on the disposal of the equipment, as the proceeds
from the sale of the equipment exceeded the originally determined salvage value.

FAB 2 — The decision to discontinue manufacturing static RAM products on Cypress's 0.6 micron
256K static RAM process in Texas resulted in excess equipment and employee redundancy.
Charges incurred in connection with this discontinuance totaled $21.3 million, of which $18.0 mil-
lion related to the write-down of equipment, $0.3 million related to the write-down of inventory,
$1.7 million related to severance and other employee related costs and $1.3 million of other fixed
asset related charges for incremental third party costs for the physical removal of the written down
assets and the resolution of certain related tax matters.

Excess equipment in Fab 2 was written down based on the useful lives of the assets and the esti-
mated salvage value of the assets. Cypress had the ability and intention to sell all the equipment
immediately, but, due to the semiconductor industry slow-down, Cypress recognized immediate
sale of the equipment would be difficult. The equipment was kept in the fab, ready for demonstra-
tion and testing by a willing buyer. Cypress used the equipment during the production phase-down
period through May 1998. As of December 31, 2000, no equipment remains on hand. Cypress
recorded a gain of $4.2 million in fiscal 2000 on the disposal of the equipment, as the proceeds
from the sale of the equipment exceeded the originally determined salvage value.

FAB 1 and San Jose Operations — The restructuring plan included the upgrade of Fab 1 to an
eight-inch facility to ensure compatibility with Cypress’s Fab 4 manufacturing facility in Minne-
sota. Fab 1 is used for research and development purposes. The plan assumed commencement of
Fab 1 restructuring activities during the middle of 1998 with completion by the end of January
1999. The plan included the disposal and write-down of six-inch manufacturing equipment that was
not upgradable to eight-inch capability. The remaining net book value of such assets was written off
over the estimated useful life through January 1999. Incremental depreciation charges, to reflect the
revised useful lives of this equipment, were included in research and development costs for 1998
and January 1999. Cypress also reserved $1.0 million to write-down the value of certain other
equipment and reserved $1.3 million related to severance and other employee related costs. In fiscal
2000, Cypress completed the conversion of its San Jose R&D wafer fab from a six-inch facility into
an eight-inch facility. 

ALPHATEC — Cypress reserved $5.1 million to provide for the consolidation of Thailand test
activities from Alphatec, Cypress's subcontractor, with Cypress’s Philippines facility. Of this $5.1
million reserve, $1.5 million was related to production inventories which were no longer usable as
a result of this consolidation, $1.3 million was related to severance costs at the subcontractor and
$2.3 million was related to excess equipment and leasehold improvements which were no longer
used. The assets were considered held for sale and were written down to their revised carrying
value. The transfer of production from Alphatec to the Philippines facility began during the second
quarter of 1998 and was completed in January 1999, one month later than originally planned.

OTHER — Separate from the restructuring charge, Cypress recorded an additional charge of $27.3
million, which was recorded as operating expenses. The charges were for inventory reserves ($15.8
million), the write-off of pre-operating costs ($3.8 million), the write-off of an equity investment
($3.1 million), costs incurred to reimburse a customer for expenses incurred as a consequence of
Cypress's defective products ($2.5 million) and the write-off of obsolete equipment in Fab 4 ($2.1
million). The write-down of inventory was made to establish incremental reserves for excess inven-
tory and was recorded as cost of revenues.

The write-off of pre-operating costs included $2.9 million related to Cypress's wafer fabrication
operation in Bloomington, Minnesota and $0.9 million related to its assembly and test operation in
the Philippines. As a result of restructuring activities, Cypress wrote off its previously capitalized
pre-operating costs as an impaired asset due to uncertainties surrounding their future economic ben-
efits and accordingly the costs were written off to cost of sales. There were no capitalized pre-oper-
ating costs subsequent to the first quarter of 1998.

The $3.1 million write-off of the investment was recorded against net interest and other income to
reflect the decline in the value of an investment. Selling, general and administrative costs included
the write-off of $2.5 million in costs incurred to reimburse a customer for certain product expenses
incurred. During Cypress's periodic review of equipment, some equipment was identified as obso-
lete and $2.1 million was charged to cost of sales to write-off the obsolete equipment.
��



Interest Expense

Interest expense was $23.6 million for fiscal 2000, compared to $9.6 million for fiscal 1999 and
$11.3 million for fiscal 1998. Interest expense in fiscal 2000 is primarily associated with the 6.0%
Convertible Subordinated Notes, issued in September 1997 and due in 2002, the 4.0% Convertible
Subordinated Notes, issued in January 2000 and due in 2005, and the 3.75% Convertible Subordi-
nated Notes, issued in June 2000 and due in 2005. The increase in fiscal 2000 of $14.0 million from
fiscal 1999 relates primarily to the increase in interest due under the 4.0% and 3.75% Convertible
Subordinated Notes. This increase is offset by a reduction in interest expense due to the conversion
of substantially all of the outstanding 6.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes on October 2, 2000,
and the retirement of $15.0 million of these Notes toward the end of 1998. The increase in fiscal
2000 of $12.3 million as compared to fiscal 1998 relates primarily to the increase in interest due
under the 4.0% and 3.75% Convertible Subordinated Notes. This increase is offset by a reduction
in interest expense due to the conversion of substantially all of the outstanding 6.0% Convertible
Subordinated Notes on October 2, 2000.

Interest expense incurred during fiscal 1998 and fiscal 1999 is primarily associated with the 6.0%
Convertible Subordinated Notes. The decrease in interest expense from fiscal 1998 to fiscal 1999 is
primarily attributable to the retirement of $15.0 million of these Notes toward the end of 1998. 

Interest Income and Other, Net

Interest income and other, net, was $64.9 million for fiscal 2000 compared to $53.2 million for fis-
cal 1999 and $14.1 million for fiscal 1998. Interest income and other, net, includes interest income,
amortization of bond issuance costs, foreign exchange gains and losses and other non-recurring
items. 

(In thousands, except percent)

Interest income increased $40.9 million or 223.3% when comparing fiscal 1999 to 2000, and $43.2
million or 270.7% when comparing fiscal 1998 to 2000. These increases in interest income are pri-
marily due to increased cash balances in fiscal year 2000, following the issuances of the convertible
subordinated notes in January and June 2000, and higher investment yields.

Other income, net, for fiscal 2000 primarily reflects a $5.0 million gain on the sale of the FCT
product line and a $4.5 million gain on the disposal of assets partially offset by other items. Other
income, net, for fiscal 1999 included a $36.2 million gain from the sale of a certain investment.
Offsetting other income was $1.0 million related to the amortization of bond issuance costs and
$0.2 million in foreign exchange gains. In fiscal 1998, other income, net, included a $1.7 million
pre-tax net gain related to the retirement of $15.0 million of Cypress’s 6.0% Convertible Subordi-
nated Notes and foreign exchange gains of $0.5 million. The 1998 other income, net, is offset by a
non-recurring, pre-tax charge of $3.1 million recorded to reflect the decline in value of a certain
investment and $1.0 million in amortization of bond issuance costs.

Taxes

Cypress’s effective tax rates for fiscal years 2000, 1999 and 1998 were 25.0%, 7.4% and 9.9%,
respectively. A tax benefit of $11.1 million was realized during fiscal 1998 compared to expenses
of $92.9 million and $7.0 million during fiscal 2000 and fiscal 1999, respectively. The benefit was
attributable primarily to the utilization of loss carrybacks, the utilization of research and develop-
ment tax credits and non-U.S. income taxed at lower tax rates compared to U.S. tax rates, princi-
pally related to Cypress's operations in the Philippines. The increase in the effective tax rate from
fiscal 1999 to 2000 can be attributed to non-deductible in-process research and development
charges and merger costs offset by utilization of loss carryovers, earnings of foreign subsidiaries
taxed at lower rates and tax credits. Cypress’s effective tax rates for the fiscal years 2000, 1999 and
1998 excluding non-deductible in-process research and development charges and merger costs,
were 22.0%, 5.0%, and 0.0%, respectively. Cypress’s effective rate varies from the U.S. statutory
rate primarily due to utilization of loss carryovers, earnings of foreign subsidiaries taxed at lower
rates and tax credits. The valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets decreased from $42.6

Year Ended % Increase

 December
31, 2000

January 2,
 2000

January 3,
 1999

1999 to
2000

1998 to
2000

Interest income $ 59,152 $ 18,297 $ 15,958 223.3% 270.7%

Other income, net 5,812 34,908 (1,825)

Interest income and other, net $ 64,964 $ 53,205 $ 14,133
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million to zero from fiscal 1999 to 2000, as Cypress believes it will realize all of its deferred tax
assets.

Earnings Before Goodwill

Cypress reported basic earnings before goodwill (“EBG”) of $2.72 per share and diluted EBG of
$2.39 per share for the year ended December 31, 2000. EBG refers to earnings excluding goodwill
and acquisition costs, restructuring related charges and credits, and non-recurring items. Goodwill
and acquisition costs consist of the amortization of intangible assets, non-cash deferred compensa-
tion expenses, in-process research and development costs, and transaction costs, net of tax. Non-
recurring costs (gains) consist primarily of gains on sales of assets, net of tax. These types of
charges and credits are excluded from the computation of EBG and are collectively referred to as
goodwill by Cypress. Cypress has presented EBG as a measure of our operating results; however,
EBG is not intended to replace operating income or net income as an indicator of operating perfor-
mance or to replace cash flow as a measure of liquidity because EBG is not a concept under gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. Also, our calculation of EBG may not be comparable to EBG
as calculated by other companies. The table below reconciles basic and diluted net income (loss)
per share to basic and diluted earnings (loss) before goodwill per share, respectively.

Reconciliation of basic net income (loss) per share to basic earnings (loss) per share before goodwill:

Reconciliation of diluted net income (loss) per share to diluted earnings (loss) per share before
goodwill:

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cypress’s cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled $884.6 million at the end of
fiscal year 2000, a $603.7 million increase from the end of fiscal 1999. Working capital increased
$622.7 million during the same period. These increases are attributed primarily to net cash flows
from Cypress’s operating activities. 

Operating cash flows increased 230.6% and 371.3% from 1999 and 1998, respectively, to $521.1 mil-
lion in fiscal 2000. For the year ended December 31, 2000, cash provided by operating activities of
$521.1 million was primarily attributable to earnings of $277.3 million, tax benefits from stock
options of $56.7 million, acquired in-process research and development of $32.4 million, depreciation

December 31,
2000

January 2,
2000

January 3,
1999

Basic net income (loss) per share $  2.29 $  0.81 $ (0.97)

Goodwill and acquisition costs net of taxes per share  0.51   0.02 —

Non-recurring costs (gains) net of taxes per share (0.08) — —

Restructuring costs (credits) net of taxes per share — (0.03) 0.52

Basic earnings (loss) before goodwill per share $ 2.72 $  0.80 $ (0.45)

December 31,
2000

January 2,
2000

January 3,
1999

Diluted net income (loss) per share $   2.03 $ 0.76 $ (0.97)

Goodwill and acquisition costs net of taxes per share   0.43 0.02 —

Non-recurring costs (gains) net of taxes per share (0.07) — —

Restructuring costs (credits) net of taxes per share — (0.03)    0.52

Diluted earnings (loss) before goodwill per share $ 2.39 $ 0.75 $ (0.45)

(In thousands) Year Ended

 December 31,
2000

January 2,
 2000

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 884,601 $ 280,947

Working capital 983,359 360,639

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations (excluding current portion) 631,055 170,884

Stockholders’ equity 1,327,668 718,620

Net cash flow generated from operating activities $ 521,097 $ 157,622
�	
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and amortization of $145.4 million and changes in working capital of $2.0 million. For the year ended
January 2, 2000, cash provided by operating activities of $157.6 million was primarily attributable to
earnings of $88.1 million, depreciation and amortization of $108.9 million, gain on sale of investment
of $36.2 million, loss on write down of assets of $11.0 million, tax benefits from stock options of
$13.7 million, and changes in working capital of $15.2 million. For the year ended January 3, 1999,
cash provided by operating activities of $110.6 million was primarily due to a net loss of $101.6 mil-
lion offset by depreciation and amortization of $117.2 million, restructuring costs of $69.6 million,
and changes in working capital of $27.2 million. Purchases of investments totaled 492.9 million dur-
ing fiscal 2000, while investments which were sold or matured, totaled 181.0 million.

On November 30, 2000, the Board of Directors of Cypress authorized the repurchase of 5 million
shares of Cypress’s outstanding common stock, which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbol CY. On December 21, 2000, the Board of Directors of Cypress authorized the
repurchase of an additional 5 million shares of Cypress’s outstanding common stock, bringing the
total shares authorized in the repurchase program to 10 million. As of December 31, 2000, 6.3 mil-
lion shares were repurchased at an average cost of $22.90 per share. In conjunction with the stock
repurchase program, the Board of Directors authorized the sale of up to 2.5 million put warrants.
As of December 31, 2000, Cypress sold put warrants through private placements for which it
received $6.3 million. Cypress had a maximum potential obligation to purchase 1.5 million shares
of its common stock at an aggregate price of $35.5 million as of December 31, 2000. The puts war-
rants have various expiration periods from March 2001 through September 2001. Cypress has the
right to settle the put warrants with cash or settle the difference between the exercise price and the
fair market value at the exercise date with stock or cash. No amount was classified out of stock-
holders’ equity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.   

In October 2000, Cypress entered into a financing and supply agreement with ST Microelectronics,
Inc. (“ST Micro”). The agreement called for ST Micro to provide funding to Cypress for the pur-
pose of purchasing equipment and increasing fabrication capacity in order to supply ST Micro with
product at future dates according to the supply agreement. ST Micro will maintain a security inter-
est in the equipment purchased. Cypress has recorded the repayment obligation as a customer
advance showing $20.2 million in current liabilities and $51.8 million as a long-term liability. The
supply agreement calls for Cypress to make available to ST Micro a minimum quantity of wafers
each year from 2001 through 2003. 

On September 7, 2000, Cypress called for the redemption of all its 6.0% Convertible Subordinated
Notes (“6.0% Notes”) due in 2002. The aggregate amount of principal outstanding at the time of
the call was approximately $160 million. Holders of the 6.0% Notes could convert their 6.0%
Notes into shares of Cypress’s common stock at a conversion rate of approximately 42.33 shares of
stock per $1,000 principal amount of the 6.0% Notes. Substantially all of the 6.0% Notes were con-
verted prior to the redemption deadline of October 2, 2000 increasing the amount of common stock
outstanding by 6.8 million shares. 

On January 31, 2000, Cypress filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Under this shelf registration, which was effective February 8, 2000, as
amended by a post-effective amendment thereto effective March 7, 2000, Cypress can, through
January 2002, sell any combination of debt securities, preferred stock and common stock in one or
more offerings up to a total amount of $400.0 million. The shelf registration statement allows
Cypress flexibility to raise funds from the offering of debt securities, common stock, preferred
stock or a combination thereof, subject to market conditions and Cypress’s capital needs.   Pursuant
to this shelf registration statement, on June 26, 2000, Cypress completed a $287.5 million regis-
tered-placement of 5-year convertible subordinated notes. The notes are due in the year 2005, with
a coupon rate of 3.75% and an initial conversion premium of 27.0%. The notes are convertible into
approximately 4.6 million shares of common stock and are callable by Cypress no earlier than July
5, 2003. Net proceeds were $279.6 million, after issuance costs of $7.9 million. As of December
31, 2000, the balance remaining related to the shelf registration statement is $112.5 million.

During fiscal 1999, Cypress filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Under this shelf registration, Cypress could, through March 2001, sell any
combination of debt securities, preferred stock and common stock in one or more offerings up to a
total amount of $300.0 million dollars. The full amount of this shelf registration statement has been
used by the transactions described in this paragraph. On January 19, 2000, Cypress completed a
$283.0 million registered-placement of 5-year convertible subordinated notes. The notes are due in
the year 2005, with a coupon rate of 4.0% and an initial conversion premium of 28.5%. The notes
are convertible into approximately 6.1 million shares of common stock and are callable by Cypress
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no earlier than February 5, 2003. Net proceeds were $275.2 million, after issuance costs of $7.8
million. Pursuant to the shelf registration, on March 29, 1999, Cypress sold 7.2 million shares of
common stock, 2.5 million shares of which were sold by selling stockholders. Cypress received
approximately $33.8 million in proceeds, net of issuance costs, and did not receive any proceeds
from the shares sold by the selling stockholders.

During fiscal 2000, Cypress purchased $338.7 million in capital equipment, a $224.3 million
increase from the $114.4 million purchased in 1999 and a $255.1 million increase from the $83.6
million purchased in 1998. Cypress purchased equipment for its domestic wafer fabrication plants,
its test and assembly facility in the Philippines, its back-end manufacturing subcontractors and its
design and technology groups. Equipment purchased for the fabs is expected to improve wafer
manufacturing capacity and capabilities as Cypress implements new technologies, including its
0.15 and 0.25 micron processes. A majority of the equipment purchased was for Fab 4 located in
Minnesota to increase its capacity and capability. Equipment purchased for the Philippines and for
use by its subcontractors was used to increase manufacturing capacity and tool certain packaging
capabilities. Capital equipment purchases for the technology group are expected to enhance and
accelerate research and development capabilities. Capital expenditures in 2001 are expected to be
lower when compared to 2000, as Cypress is now realizing the effects of fiscal 2000 efforts to
increase wafer manufacturing capabilities and capacity. Cypress completed its upgrade of the
research and development fab in San Jose from six-inch to eight-inch during fiscal 2000, ensuring
compatibility with Cypress’s wafer manufacturing facilities in Minnesota. Cypress will also con-
tinue to purchase new software and equipment to enhance its research and development capabili-
ties. In fiscal 2001, Cypress expects to purchase approximately $135 million in capital equipment. 

Employees of Cypress Microsystems (“CMS”), a subsidiary of Cypress, purchasing stock through
the Restricted Stock Plan, were offered loans to enable them to purchase their shares. This program
started in February 2000 and continues to be available. The loans bear interest at a rate of 6.45%
and are secured by CMS common shares. The loans, including interest, are due at the earlier of
three days following the sale of the shares, within thirty days of the date the individual ceases to be
an employee of Cypress Microsystems or Cypress Semiconductor, or three years from the grant
date of the loan. At December 31, 2000, amounts receivable under this program totaled $0.1 mil-
lion.

In May 2000, a similar offering was made to the employees of Alation just prior to merger. The pro-
gram offered loans bearing interest at an annual rate of 7.0% to enable the employees to exercise
their options to purchase Alation stock. Upon merger, using the pooling of interests method, all Ala-
tion shares were converted into Cypress common shares. The loans, including interest, are due at the
earlier of three days following the sale of the shares, within thirty days of the date the individual
ceases to be an employee of Cypress, or a Cypress subsidiary, or three years from the grant date of
the loan. At December 31, 2000, amounts receivable under this program totaled $0.2 million.

In March 1999, Cypress announced a program whereby all U.S. employees were offered loans to
facilitate the exercise of vested stock options. Under the terms of the program, only options which
were vested as of March 1, 1999 and whose exercise price was less than or equal to $9.75 could
qualify for a loan. The loans, including interest, are due at the earlier of three days following the
sale of the shares, within thirty days of the date the individual ceases to be an employee of Cypress
or 3 years from the grant date of the loan. The loans bear interest at a rate of 4.71% and are secured
by Cypress common shares. At December 31, 2000, amounts receivable under this program totaled
$1.8 million. 

In 1998, Cypress retired a total of $15.0 million principal of its $175.0 million, 6.0% Convertible
Subordinated Notes which were issued in September 1997, for $12.9 million, resulting in a pre-tax
net gain of $1.7 million. The net gain was recorded as other income. The remaining outstanding
notes were called by Cypress effective October 2, 2000. A portion of the proceeds from the 6.0%
Notes were used to repay the $49.0 million balance outstanding under a revolving credit facility,
acquire equipment, purchase a building in Woodinville, Washington and for stock repurchases in
1998.

In fiscal years 1997 and 1998, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 14.0 mil-
lion shares of Cypress’s common stock. Through January 3, 1999, 8.1 million shares had been
repurchased under this entire program for $67.5 million. On February 25, 1999, the Board of Direc-
tors terminated the stock repurchase program. The unsold repurchased shares were used for option
exercises under Cypress’s 1994 Stock Option Plan and stock purchases under the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. During 1998, Cypress reissued 1.8 million shares of common stock under such
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plans. During fiscal 1999, Cypress reissued a total of 8.3 million shares in relation to the stock
offering described above and in conjunction with the 1994 Stock Option Plan and Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. Such shares had been repurchased under the 1997/1998 plan and repurchase pro-
grams prior to 1997.

In 1994 and 1995, Cypress entered into two operating lease agreements with respect to its office
and manufacturing facilities in San Jose, which expired in 1999, and Minnesota, which expires in
2004. In October 1999, Cypress entered into a new operating lease agreement for the San Jose
office, which expires in 2004 with the same lessor for the same facilities. In April 1996, Cypress
entered into an additional lease agreement, which expires in 2001 for two office facilities in San
Jose. These agreements require that Cypress maintain a specific level of restricted cash or invest-
ments to serve as collateral for these leases and maintain compliance with certain financial cove-
nants. Cypress's restricted investment balance as of December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000 was
$60.7 million and $61.2 million, respectively, and is recorded as other assets on the Balance Sheet.
Cypress was in compliance with its covenants at December 31, 2000.

Cypress believes that existing cash and cash equivalents and cash from operations will be sufficient
to meet present and anticipated working capital requirements and other cash needs for at least the
next twelve months. Beyond twelve months, changes in market demand and the possible need to
increase manufacturing capacity and capability, may cause Cypress to raise additional capital
through debt or equity financing. Although additional financing may be required, there can be no
assurance that it would be available to Cypress or available at terms Cypress deems satisfactory.

Subsequent Events

On March 22, 2001, Cypress completed an agreement with a lessor in relation to the construction
of an approximate 111,000 square foot general purpose office building on the northeast lot of
Champion Court, adjacent to the current executive offices. The arrangement will include a 34.5-
year ground lease granted by Cypress to the lessor. The lessor will construct the building on the lot,
with Cypress acting as its construction agent. The agreement allows for an eighteen-month con-
struction period followed by a five-year lease term. During the lease term, payments due vary
based on LIBOR, plus a spread based on a total lease balance of up to approximately $21 million.
Cypress is obligated to provide collateral equivalent to 86.2% of the then existing lease balance. At
the end of the lease term, Cypress shall have the option to purchase the building.

On March 22, 2001, Cypress employees were offered the opportunity to exchange their stock
options for a promise to issue new options. The offer to exchange options expires on April 4, 2001.
The new options will be granted on October 8, 2001 with an exercise price equal to the NYSE clos-
ing price on the same day.  Any grant issued prior to March 20, 2001 will be eligible for this pro-
gram. The new option will be issued with 12 months vested as of October 8, 2001 and the balance
will vest 1/60th per month regardless of how many options were vested at the time of the cancella-
tion election.

On March 16, 2001, the Board of Directors of Cypress authorized the repurchase of an additional 5
million shares of Cypress’s outstanding common stock, bringing the total shares authorized in the
repurchase program to 15 million. Since December 31, 2000, 1.0 million shares were repurchased
at an average cost of $21.01 per share. In conjunction with the stock repurchase, the Board of
Directors authorized the additional sale of put warrants. Cypress sold put warrants through private
placements for which Cypress received $8.1 million between January 1, 2001 and March 22, 2001.
Cypress had a maximum potential obligation to purchase 3.3 million shares of its common stock at
an aggregate price of $68.1 million as of March 22, 2001. The put warrants have various expiration
periods through October 2001. Cypress has the right to settle the put warrants with cash or settle
the difference between the exercise price and the fair market value at the exercise date with stock or
cash. No amount was classified out of stockholders’ equity in the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheet.

On February 23, 2001, Cypress completed its acquisition of International Microcircuits Inc.
(“IMI”), a company specializing in timing technology integrated circuits. IMI’s product portfolio
includes programmable clocks, clock distribution products, electromagnetic interference suppres-
sion devices and application-specific products. Cypress paid approximately $126 million in cash
and options to acquire Cypress common stock. Cypress will account for the transaction by the pur-
chase accounting method. 

On February 5, 2001, Cypress announced the signing of a definitive agreement to acquire HiBand
Semiconductors, Inc., a provider of mixed-signal integrated circuits for high-speed communica-
tions markets. The acquisition, which has an estimated value of $32 million, is expected to close
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during March 2001 and will be accounted for using the purchase accounting method. Closing is
subject to regulatory approvals and other customary conditions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivatives and Hedging Activities.”
SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. In July 1999,
the FASB issued SFAS No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities —
Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133,” which deferred the effective date until
the first fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2000. In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS Statement
No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities — an
Amendment of SFAS No. 133.” SFAS No. 138 amends certain terms and conditions of SFAS No.
133. SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivative instruments be recognized at fair value as either
assets of liabilities in the statement of financial position. The accounting for changes in the fair
value (i.e., gains or losses) of a derivative instrument depends on whether is has been designated
and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and further, on the type of hedging relationship.
Cypress will adopt SFAS No. 133, as amended, in its first quarter of 2001. The adoption of SFAS
No. 133 will not have a material impact on its financial statements.

Factors Affecting Future Results
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk 

Cypress is exposed to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign cur-
rency exchange rates. To mitigate these risks, Cypress utilizes derivative financial instruments.
Cypress does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

The fair value of Cypress’s investment portfolio or related income would not be significantly
impacted by either a 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates due mainly to the short-
term nature of the major portion of Cypress’s investment portfolio. An increase in interest rates
would not significantly increase interest expense due to the fixed nature of Cypress’s debt obligation.

A majority of Cypress’s revenue and capital spending is transacted in U.S. dollars. However,
Cypress does enter into these transactions in other currencies, primarily Japanese yen and certain
other European currencies. To protect against reductions in value and the volatility of future cash
flows caused by changes in foreign exchange rates, Cypress has established revenue and balance
sheet hedging programs. Cypress’s hedging programs reduce, but do not always eliminate, the
impact of foreign currency rate movements. Based on Cypress’s overall currency rate exposure at
December 31, 2000, a near-term 10% appreciation or depreciation in the U.S. dollar would have an
immaterial effect on Cypress's financial position, results of operations and cash flows over the next
fiscal year.

All of the potential changes noted above are based on sensitivity analyses performed on Cypress’s
balances as of December 31, 2000.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per-share amounts) Year Ended

December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 551,025 $ 159,088

Short-term investments 333,576 121,859

Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments 884,601 280,947

Accounts receivable, net 193,525 104,143

Inventories 104,935 98,786

Other current assets 99,725 78,117

Total current assets 1,282,786 561,993

Property, plant and equipment, net 571,475 358,206

Other assets 507,493 226,759

Total assets $ 2,361,754 $ 1,146,958

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 95,735 $ 98,378

Accrued compensation and employee benefits 61,379 32,485

Other current liabilities 60,108 29,119

Deferred income on sales to distributors 34,084 21,061

Income taxes payable 48,121 20,311

Total current liabilities 299,427 201,354

Convertible subordinated notes 570,500 160,000

Deferred income taxes 103,604 56,100

Other long-term liabilities 60,555 10,884

Total liabilities 1,034,086 428,338

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 5,000 shares authorized; none
issued and outstanding — —

Common stock, $.01 par value, 650,000 and 250,000 shares 
authorized; 136,895 and 119,019 issued; 125,659 and   
114,111 outstanding at December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000 1,369 1,191

Additional paid-in-capital 1,010,357 533,137

Notes receivable from stockholders (2,146) (8,186)

Deferred compensation (10,360) (1,932)

Retained earnings 513,649 236,341

1,512,869 760,551

Less: shares of common stock held in treasury, at cost; 11,236 
shares and 4,980 shares at December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000 (185,201) (41,931)

Total stockholders' equity 1,327,668 718,620

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 2,361,754 $ 1,146,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
��



 Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per-share amounts) Year Ended

December 31, January 2, January 3, 
2000 2000 1999

Revenues $ 1,287,787 $ 745,042 $ 588,915

Cost of revenues 564,839 408,885 429,599

Research and development 184,471 136,858 116,871

Selling, general and administrative 153,909 113,601 97,267

Acquisition and other non-recurring costs 56,214 37,902 —

Restructuring (485) (3,811) 60,737

Total operating costs and expenses 958,948 693,435 704,474

Operating income (loss) 328,839 51,607 (115,559)

Interest expense (23,633) (9,643) (11,276)

Interest income and other, net 64,964 53,205 14,133

Income (loss) before income taxes 370,170 95,169 (112,702)

(Provision) benefit for income taxes (92,862) (7,039) 11,108

Net income (loss) $ 277,308 $ 88,130 $ (101,594)

Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 2.29 $ 0.81 $ (0.97)
Diluted $ 2.03 $ 0.76 $ (0.97)

Weighted average common and common equivalent shares
  outstanding:

Basic 121,126 108,156 105,238
Diluted 144,228 115,527 105,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(In thousands)

Notes 
Additional Receivable Total

Common Stock Paid-In From Deferred Retained Treasury Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Stockholders Compensation Earnings Stock Equity

Balances at 
December 29, 1997 106,139 $ 1,136 $ 466,053 $ (4) $ (506) $ 283,302 $ (91,338) $ 658,643

Cypress (ICW) activities for 
the quarter ended 
March 28, 1999 — — — — — 1,622 — 1,622

Re-issuance of treasury
  shares under employee
  stock plans and other 2,287 5 1,347 4 — (7,661) 19,767 13,462
Premiums received from put
  option issuances — — 6,620 — — — — 6,620
Conversion of note payable
  into common stock — — 225 — — — — 225
Repurchase of common 
  stock under stock repurchase 
  program (7,607) — — — — — (62,274) (62,274)
Compensation expense to
  outside consultants — — 14 — — — — 14
Provision for and amortization
 of deferred compensation — — 2,562 — (1,455) — — 1,107
Net loss for the year — — — — — (101,594) — (101,594)

Balances at 
January 3, 1999 100,819 1,141 476,821 — (1,961) 175,669 (133,845) 517,825

Cypress (Galvantech) activities
  for the quarter ended
  March 31, 1999 — — — — — 232 — 232
Re-issuance of treasury shares 
 and issuance of common 
 stock under employee stock 
  plans and other 13,292 50 40,265 — — (27,690) 91,914 104,539
Tax benefit resulting from 
  stock option transactions — — 13,772 — — — — 13,772
Notes receivable from 
  stockholders — — — (8,186) — — — (8,186)
Conversion of note payable
  into common stock — — 300 — — — — 300
Compensation expense to 
  outside consultants — — 234 — — — — 234
Provision for and amortization
  of deferred compensation — — 1,745 — 29 — — 1,774
Net income for the year — — — — — 88,130 — 88,130

Balances at 
January 2, 2000 114,111 1,191 533,137 (8,186) (1,932) 236,341  (41,931) 718,620

Issuance of common stock in
  relation to acquisitions 3,513 35 171,337 — — — — 171,372
Repurchase of common stock
  under stock repurchase program (6,256) — — — — — (143,270) (143,270)
Issuance of common stock
  under employee stock plans
  and other 7,519 75 67,891 — — — — 67,966
Issuance of common stock due
  to conversion of notes 6,772 68 159,918 — — — — 159,986
Provision for and amortization
  of deferred compensation — — 15,053 — (8,428) — — 6,625
Notes receivable from 
  stockholders — — — 6,040 — — — 6,040
Premiums received from 
  issuance of put options — — 6,288 — — — — 6,288
Tax benefit resulting from 
  stock option transactions — — 56,733 — — — — 56,733
Net income for the year — — — — — 277,308 — 277,308

Balances at 
December 31, 2000 125,659 $ 1,369 $1,010,357 $ (2,146) $ (10,360) $ 513,649 $  (185,201) $ 1,327,668

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands) Year Ended

December 31, January 2, January 3, 
2000 2000 1999

Cash flow from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 277,308 $ 88,130 $ (101,594)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

generated by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 145,411 108,886 117,204
Acquired in-process research and development 32,425 4,019 —
Non-cash interest and amortization of debt 

issuance costs 5,293 1,034 1,034
Net gain on early retirement of debt — — (1,734)
Loss on write down of assets — 11,047 —
Deferred gain on sale of assets — (3,959) —
Gain on sales of assets (5,000) (36,237) —
Restructuring costs (credits) and other 

non-recurring costs 1,479 (3,811) 69,564
Issuance of stock for services — — 14
Tax benefit resulting from stock option transactions 56,733 13,722 —
Deferred income taxes 5,434 (9,971) (1,220)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net (89,166) (30,416) 8,516
Inventories, net (7,162) (30,149) 18,276
Other assets (14,367) (13,568) 36,423
Accounts payable, accrued and other liabilities 71,876 58,676 (17,749)
Deferred income 13,023 7,221 2,985
Income taxes payable 27,810 (7,002) (21,152)

Net cash flow generated from operating activities 521,097 157,622 110,567

Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of investments (492,855) (218,383) (113,753)
Notes receivable — 61 (147)
Sale or maturities of investments 181,018 66,872 127,195
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (338,740) (114,364) (83,570)
Acquisition of Anchor and Arcus — (24,839) —
Acquisition of technology rights — (4,700) —
Acquisition of product rights and equity interest 

from Altera — (12,187) —
Proceeds from sale of investment 7,500 36,237 —
Proceeds from sale of equipment 325 16,179 6,551

Net cash flow used for investing activities (642,752) (255,124) (63,724)

Cash flow from financing activities:
Borrowing from (repayment of) notes payable and

short-term debt (1,099) (2,154) (4,551)
Issuance of convertible subordinated notes, net of

issuance costs 554,812 — —
Loss on early retirement of debt — — (12,916)
Repurchase of common stock (143,270) — (62,274)
Re-issuance of treasury shares and issuance of common

stock  63,538 116,982 13,555
(Issuance) repayment of notes to stockholders, net 6,040 (8,186) —
Premiums received from put options 6,288 — 6,620
Other liabilities, including minority interest 18,665 897 (697)

Net cash flow generated (used) for financing activities 504,974 107,539 (60,263)

Net change in cash during the period due to
mergers and acquisitions 8,618 (2,339) 3,434

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 391,937 7,698 (9,986)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 159,088 151,390 161,376

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 551,025 $ 159,088 $ 151,390

Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $ 15,734 $ 9,626 $ 10,092
Income taxes $ 15,252 $ 5,467 $ 700

Non-cash flow items:
Common stock and options issued for acquisitions $ 186,360 $ 6,200 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cypress — Cypress Semiconductor Corporation (“Cypress”) designs, develops, manufactures and markets a
broad line of high-performance digital and mixed-signal integrated circuits for a range of markets, including
data communications, telecommunications, computation, consumer products and industrial control. With a
focus on emerging communications applications, Cypress's product portfolios include: networking-optimized
and micro-power static RAMs; high-bandwidth multi-port and FIFO memories; high-density programmable
logic devices; timing technology for PCs and other digital systems; and controllers for Universal Serial Bus
(“USB”). 

Cypress's operations outside of the U.S. include its test and assembly plant in the Philippines and several sales
offices and design centers located in various parts of the world. Revenues to international customers were
49%, 49% and 43% of total revenues in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cypress and all of its subsidiaries. Intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year — The Cypress fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to December 31. Fiscal years 2000, 1999
and 1998 ended December 31, 2000, January 2, 2000, and January 3, 1999, respectively. Fiscal years 2000 and
1999 were 52-week years while fiscal year 1998 was a 53-week year. Operating results for the additional week
were considered immaterial to Cypress consolidated operating results for the year ended January 3, 1999.

Management Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates,
although such differences are not expected to be material to the financial statements.

Reclassifications — Certain prior year amounts have been adjusted to conform to current year presentation.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — For certain of Cypress’s financial instruments, including cash and
cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other current liabilities, the carrying amounts
approximate their fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these items. The carrying value of Cypress’s
investments approximate their fair value based on market information. At December 31, 2000, the estimated
fair value of the Convertible Subordinated Notes was $421.3 million.

The estimated fair values have been determined by Cypress, using available market information. However,
considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accord-
ingly, the estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that Cypress could realize in a cur-
rent market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies could have a
material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash Equivalents — Highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of ninety days or less are
considered equivalent to cash. 

Investments —All Cypress investments are classified as available-for-sale. Investments in available-for-sale
securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net of related tax, as a component of
stockholders’ equity. Unrealized gains and losses, net of related taxes, were not material for the year ended
December 31, 2000 or cumulatively.

In fiscal 1998, Cypress recorded a $3.0 million writedown of a certain investment that was believed to be per-
manently impaired. In 1999, due to a resurgence in the semiconductor business, the value of the investment
increased.   In fiscal 1999, Cypress sold the investment, recording a pre-tax gain of $36.2 million in other
income.

Inventories — Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost (which approximates actual cost on a first-
in, first-out basis) or market. Market is based on estimated net realizable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreci-
ation. Depreciation is computed for financial reporting purposes using the straight-line method over the esti-
mated useful lives of the assets as presented below. Leasehold improvements and leasehold interests are
amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the remaining term of the lease. Accel-
erated methods of computing depreciation are used for tax purposes.

 Useful Lives in Years

Equipment 3 to 7

Buildings and leasehold improvements 5 to 10

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7
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Pre-operating Costs — Prior to fiscal year 1998 incremental costs incurred in connection with developing
major production capability at new manufacturing plants, including depreciation, amortization and cost of
qualification of equipment and production processes were capitalized and amortized over five years. Pre-oper-
ating costs totaling $3.8 million, net of accumulated amortization were included in other assets at December
29, 1997. Such costs were being amortized over five years at a rate based on estimated units to be manufac-
tured during that period. In fiscal 1998, these costs were written off. Pre-operating costs after 1998 have been
expensed as incurred.

Long-Lived Assets — Long-lived assets held and used by Cypress are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. In addition, all
long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair market value, less
expected selling costs.

Revenue Recognition — In December 1999, the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (“SAB 101”) “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” as
amended by SAB 101A and 101B, which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation and disclosure of
revenue in financial statements filed with the SEC. SAB 101 outlines the basic criteria that must be met to rec-
ognize revenue and provides guidance for disclosures related to revenue recognition policies. Adoption of
SAB 101 did not have a material effect on Cypress’s results.

Revenues from product sales are generally recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the
price is fixed or determined, collection is reasonably assured and delivery of product has occured. Reserves are
provided for estimated returns. A portion of Cypress’s sales are made to distributors under agreements which
allow certain rights of return and price protection on products unsold. Accordingly, Cypress defers recognition
of revenues and profit on such sales until these distributors resell the products.

Cypress sells to certain international distributors with a provision for price adjustments on certain products
without a right of return. Cypress reserves for all anticipated price adjustments, and revenues are recognized
upon shipment.

Cypress also has inventory, which is held by certain customers on a consignment basis. Revenues are recorded
when title transfers as defined per the respective consignment agreements.

Earnings Per Share — Basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is computed using weighted average common
shares outstanding. Diluted EPS is computed using weighted average common shares outstanding plus any
potentially dilutive securities, except when their effect is anti-dilutive. Dilutive securities include stock options
and convertible debt.

Translation of Foreign Currencies — Cypress uses the U.S. dollar as its functional currency for all foreign
subsidiaries. Accordingly, gains and losses from translation of foreign currency financial statements into U.S.
dollars are included in results of operations. Sales to customers are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars. All
foreign currency translation gains and losses have not been material in any year.

Hedging – To protect against reductions in value and volatility of future cash flows caused by changes in for-
eign exchange, Cypress has established revenue and balance sheet hedging programs. These hedging programs
reduce, but do not always eliminate, the impact of foreign currency rate movements. It is Cypress’s general
policy to hedge using spot and forward contracts to cover at least eighty percent (80%) of net foreign exchange
risks. Cypress also has hedging programs to cover known exposure for capital spending contracts denominated
in foreign currencies.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Financial instruments that potentially subject Cypress to concentrations of
credit risk are primarily investments and trade accounts receivable. Cypress’s investment policy requires cash
investments to be placed with high-credit quality institutions and to limit the amount of credit risk from any
one issuer.

Cypress sells its products to original equipment manufacturers and distributors throughout the world. Cypress
performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition whenever deemed necessary and
generally does not require collateral. Cypress maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based
upon the expected collectibility of all accounts receivable. No single customer represented greater than 10% of
accounts receivable at December 31, 2000. Sales to Motorola, Inc. accounted for 10.9% of total revenues in
fiscal 2000. Sales to two distributors accounted for greater than 10% of total revenues in fiscal 2000; sales to
one distributor accounted for greater than 10% of total revenues in 1999 and 1998. Sales to Arrow Electronics,
Inc. were 18.0%, 19.1% and 29.4% in fiscal 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Sales to Future Electronics
Corporation were 14.1% of total revenues in fiscal 2000. Write-offs of accounts receivable have been immate-
rial during the preceding three fiscal years.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Cypress accounts for its stock option plans and its employee
stock purchase plan in accordance with provisions of the Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and complies with the disclosure provisions of State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” If
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there is any compensation cost under the rules of APB 25, the expense is amortized using an accelerated
method prescribed under the rules of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 28.
In accordance with SFAS No. 123, Cypress provides additional pro forma disclosures in Note 9. On July 1,
2000, Cypress adopted FASB Interpretation No. 44, which addresses a number of accounting practice issues
relating to the application of APB 25. The interpretation was generally effective on July 1, 2000, but in some
circumstances applied to transactions that occurred prior to the effective date. 

Comprehensive Income — In 1998, Cypress adopted SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income.”
Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of a company during a period from non-owner
sources. Cypress did not have a material difference between net income and comprehensive income for the
years presented. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements — In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivatives and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards for deriv-
ative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activ-
ities. In July 1999, the FASB issued SFAS No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities — Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133,” which deferred the effective date
until the first fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2000. In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138,
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities — an Amendment of SFAS
133.” SFAS No. 138 amends certain terms and conditions of SFAS No. 133. SFAS No. 133 requires that all
derivative instruments be recognized at fair value as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial
position. The accounting for changes in the fair value (i.e., gains or losses) of a derivative instrument depends
on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and further, on the type of
hedging relationship. Cypress will adopt SFAS No. 133, as amended, in its first quarter of 2001. The adoption
of SFAS No. 133 will not have a material impact on its financial statements.

Note 2: Balance Sheet Components
Available-For-Sale Securities
(In thousands) Year Ended

At December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, the net unrealized holding gains and losses on securities were
immaterial. The securities at December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000 are shown by contractual maturity
below.

(In thousands)

Accounts Receivable, Net
(In thousands)

Inventories
(In thousands)

 December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

Corporate debt securities $ 515,352 $ 175,510

Federal, state and municipal obligations 117,336 110,307

Money markets 425,359 69,755

Other 14,089 13,720

Total available-for-sale securities $  1,072,136 $ 369,292

December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

Due in one year or less $  860,692 $ 257,968

Due after one year through two years 211,444 111,324

Total available-for-sale securities $  1,072,136 $ 369,292

December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

Accounts receivable, gross $ 199,730 $ 107,614

Allowance for doubtful accounts and customer returns (6,205) (3,471)

Accounts receivable, net $  193,525 $ 104,143

December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

Raw materials $ 11,387 $ 13,360

Work-in-process 63,200 49,328

Finished goods 30,348 36,098

Inventories $ 104,935 $  98,786
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Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
(In thousands) Year Ended

Other Assets
(In thousands)

Other Current Liabilities
(In thousands)

Note 3: Mergers Using Pooling of Interests
Merger with Alation Systems, Incorporated

On May 24, 2000, Cypress completed a merger with Alation Systems, Inc. (“Alation”), which was accounted
for as a pooling of interests. Cypress issued 0.5 million shares of its common stock plus options in exchange
for all outstanding stock and options of Alation. These consolidated financial statements and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements give effect to the merger for all periods presented. The fiscal years of
Cypress and Alation were different, and Alation has changed its fiscal periods to coincide with that of Cypress.
Cypress’s consolidated balance sheets as of January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999 have been combined with
Alation’s consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 1999 and December 31, 1998, respectively. For the
purpose of the consolidated statements of operations for the periods ended January 2, 2000 and January 3,
1999, Cypress’s statements of operations have been combined with Alation’s statements of operations for the
periods ended December 31, 1999 and December 31, 1998, respectively.

During the quarter ended July 2, 2000, Cypress recorded merger-related costs of $1.4 million related to the
acquisition of Alation. These charges, which consist primarily of non-cash deferred compensation charges,
legal and accounting, have been included under acquisition and other non-recurring costs in the consolidated
statements of operations.

Merger with Galvantech, Incorporated

On March 2, 2000, Cypress completed a merger with Galvantech, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Galvantech”),
which was accounted for as a pooling of interests. Cypress issued 3.0 million shares of its common stock plus
options in exchange for all outstanding stock and options of Galvantech. These consolidated financial state-
ments and the notes to the consolidated financial statements give effect to the merger for all periods presented.
The fiscal years of Cypress and Galvantech were different, and Galvantech has changed its fiscal periods to
coincide with that of Cypress. Cypress’s consolidated balance sheets as of April 2, 2000 and January 2, 2000
have been combined with Galvantech’s consolidated balance sheets as of April 2, 2000 and December 31,
1999, respectively. For the purpose of the consolidated statements of operations for the periods ended April 2,
2000 and April 4, 1999, Cypress’s statements of operations have been combined with Galvantech’s statements
of operations for the three-month periods ended April 2, 2000 and March 31, 1999, respectively. As a result of

December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

Land $ 14,448 $ 13,829

Equipment 984,395) 735,493)

Buildings and leasehold improvements 152,606) 101,998)

Furniture and fixtures 10,046) 8,499)

Total property, plant and equipment 1,161,495) 859,819)

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (590,020) (501,613)

Property, plant and equipment, net $  571,475 $  358,206

December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

Restricted investments $  60,698 $ 61,198

Long-term investments 211,444 111,324

Intangible assets and goodwill 214,637 43,721

Other 20,714 10,516

Other assets $ 507,493 $ 226,759

December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

Customer advances $ 20,159 $ —

Accrued interest payable 10,305 2,400

Rep commissions 7,301 3,031

Accrued royalties 4,007 2,913

Restructuring reserve — 2,313

Other 18,336 18,462

Other current liabilities $ 60,108 $ 29,119
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combining Cypress’s and Galvantech’s financial statements for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2000 and Jan-
uary 3, 1999, the results of operations of Galvantech for the quarter ended March 31, 1999 were included in
the consolidated statements of operations of both 1998 and 1999. Therefore, the balance sheet and cash and
cash equivalents for the quarter ended December 31, 1998 and March 31, 1999 are the same.

During the quarter ended April 2, 2000, Cypress recorded merger-related costs of $1.8 million related to the
acquisition of Galvantech. These charges, which consist primarily of legal, accounting and investment bank-
ing fees, have been included under acquisition and other non-recurring costs in the consolidated statements of
operations. 

Merger with IC WORKS Incorporated

On April 1, 1999, Cypress completed a merger with IC WORKS Inc. (“ICW”), which was accounted for as a
pooling of interests. The consolidated financial statements and the notes to the consolidated financial state-
ments give effect to the merger for all periods presented. The fiscal years of Cypress and ICW were different.
ICW has changed its fiscal year-end to coincide with that of Cypress. Cypress’s consolidated statements of
operations for the periods ended January 3, 1999 and December 27, 1997, have been combined with ICW’s
consolidated statements of operations for the corresponding twelve-month periods ended December 28, 1998
and March 28, 1998. 

During fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded merger-related transaction costs of $3.7 million related to the merger of
ICW. These charges, which consist primarily of investment banking and other professional fees, have been
included under acquisition and other non-recurring costs in the consolidated statements of operations.

Combined Financial Statements of Cypress with Merged Companies

The results of operations previously reported by the separate companies prior to the mergers and included in
the results of operations for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999 are presented below.   

(In thousands)

(In thousands)

Note 4: Acquisitions Using Purchase Accounting
Acquisition of Silicon Light Machines

On August 30, 2000, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Silicon Light Machines (“SLM”)
that Cypress did not previously own.   SLM is a supplier of microelectromechanical systems (“MEMS”) tech-
nology applicable to fiber-optic networks and other applications. The acquisition was accounted for using pur-
chase accounting. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were
included in Cypress’s consolidated balance sheet as of August 30, 2000, the effective date of the purchase.
There were no significant differences between the accounting policies of Cypress and SLM.

Cypress acquired SLM for a total consideration of $164.0 million, including $161.2 million in stock, an exist-
ing $2.2 million investment and direct acquisition costs of $0.6 million for legal and accounting fees. The total
purchase price was allocated to the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on
appraisals prepared by an independent appraisal firm using estimates and projections provided by manage-
ment. The asset values estimates are as follows:

(In thousands)

The valuation method used to value the in-process technology of SLM is a form of discounted cash flow
method commonly known as the “percentage of completion” approach whereby the cash flow derived from
the technology is multiplied by the percentage of completion of the in-process technology.   This approach is a
widely recognized appraisal method and is commonly used to value technology assets. The value of the in-

 Year ended January 2, 2000 Cypress Galvantech Alation Total

Revenue $ 705,487 $ 39,316 $ 239 $ 745,042

Net income (loss) $ 91,054 $ 908 $ (3,832) $ 88,130

 Year ended January 3, 1999 Cypress IC WORKS Galvantech Alation Total

Revenue $ 486,842 $ 68,049 $ 33,651 $ 373 $ 588,915

Net income (loss) $ (110,848) $ 5,930 $ 5,068 $ (1,744) $ (101,594)

Fair value of tangible net assets $ 17,017

In-process research and development 30,400

Current technology 107,200

Assembled workforce 4,700

Deferred tax liability (44,760)

Excess of purchase price over identifiable net assets acquired 49,456

Total $ 164,013
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process technology of SLM is the discounted expected future cash flow attributable to the in-process technol-
ogy, taking into consideration the percentage of completion of products utilizing this technology, utilization of
pre-existing technology, the risks related to the characteristics and applications of the technology, existing and
future markets, and the technological risk associated with completing the development of the technology. The
cash flow derived from the in-process technology projects was discounted using a discount rate of 30.0%,
which Cypress believes was appropriate for the risk of this technology for which commercial feasibility had
not been established.   The percentage of completion for each in-process project was determined by identifying
the elapsed time invested in the project as a ratio of the total time required to complete the project to technical
and commercial feasibility. Schedules were based on management’s estimate of tasks completed and the tasks
to be completed to bring the project to technical and commercial feasibility. As of December 31, 2000, the
actual development timelines and costs are in line with management’s estimates.

The value of current technology was determined by estimating the future cash flows to be derived from prod-
ucts based on existing commercially feasible technologies at the date of the acquisition and discounting associ-
ated cash flow using discount rates of 10.0% and 27.0% (depending on the products), which Cypress believes
was appropriate for the business risks inherent in manufacturing and marketing these products. Factors consid-
ered in estimating the future cash flow to be derived from the existing technology include risks related to the
characteristics and applications of the technology, existing and future markets, and assessment of the age of the
technology within its life span.

The value of the assembled workforce is based on estimated costs to replace the existing staff, including
recruiting, hiring and training costs for employees in all categories to fully deploy a work force of similar size
and skill to the same level of productivity as the existing work force.

The amounts allocated to current technology, assembled workforce and residual goodwill are being amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives of between four and seven years using the straight-line method. 

Summarized below are the unaudited pro forma results of Cypress as though SLM had been acquired at Janu-
ary 4, 1999. Adjustments have been made for the estimated increases in amortization related to the purchased
core technology, completed products, workforce, amortization of stock-based compensation and other appro-
priate pro forma adjustments. 

The above amounts are based upon certain assumptions and estimates, which we believe are reasonable and do
not reflect any benefit from economies of scale, which might be achieved from combined operations. The pro
forma financial information presented above is not necessarily indicative of either the results of operations that
would have occurred had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of fiscal 1999 or of future results of oper-
ations of the combined companies. The charge for purchased in-process research and development has not
been included in the pro forma results above because it is non-recurring and directly related to the acquisition. 

Acquisition of RadioCom Corporation

On June 29, 2000, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of RadioCom Corporation (“Radio-
Com”). RadioCom specializes in the design and development of semiconductur radio frequency (“RF”) inte-
grated circuits. The acquisition was accounted for using purchase accounting. Accordingly, the estimated fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were included in Cypress’s consolidated balance sheet as of June
29, 2000, the effective date of the purchase. The results of operations of RadioCom from June 29, 2000 through
Cypress’s quarter ended July 2, 2000 were not significant and were therefore excluded from that quarter’s
reported results. There are no significant differences between the accounting policies of Cypress and RadioCom.

Cypress acquired RadioCom for a total consideration of $10.2 million in stock. The total purchase price was
allocated to the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on appraisals prepared by
management. The asset value estimates are as follows:

(In thousands)

(In thousands, except per share amount) Year Ended

December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

Total revenue $ 1,291,106 $ 744,872

Net income $ 296,015 $ 30,021

Net income per share

Basic $ 2.44 $ 0.28

Diluted $ 2.24 $ 0.26

Fair value of tangible net assets $ 51

In-process research and development 2,025

Current technology 1,752

Assembled workforce 802

Excess of purchase price over identifiable net assets acquired 5,584

Total $ 10,214
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The valuation method used to value the in-process technology of RadioCom is the “percentage of completion”
approach. The value of the in-process technology of RadioCom is the discounted expected future cash flow
attributable to the in-process technology, taking into consideration the percentage of completion of products
utilizing this technology, utilization of pre-existing technology, the risks related to the characteristics and
applications of the technology, existing and future markets, and the technological risk associated with com-
pleting the development of the technology. The cash flow derived from the in-process technology projects was
discounted using a discount rate of 20.0%, which Cypress believes was appropriate for the risk of this technol-
ogy for which commercial feasibility had not been established. The percentage of completion for each in-pro-
cess project was determined by identifying milestones of completed project steps as compared to the
remaining milestones to be completed to bring the project to technical and commercial feasibility. Milestones
were based on management’s estimate of tasks completed, value added and degree of difficulty of the portion
of the project completed as of the acquisition date, in comparison with the tasks to be completed to bring the
project to technical and commercial feasibility. As of December 31, 2000, the actual development timelines
and costs are in line with management’s estimates.

The value of current technology was determined by estimating the future cash flows to be derived from prod-
ucts based on existing commercially feasible technologies at the date of the acquisition and discounting asso-
ciated cash flow using a discount rate of 35.0%, which Cypress believes was appropriate for the business risks
inherent in manufacturing and marketing these products. Factors considered in estimating the future cash flow
to be derived from the existing technology include risks related to the characteristics and applications of the
technology, existing and future markets, and assessment of the age of the technology within its life span.

The value of the assembled workforce is based on estimated costs to replace the existing staff, including
recruiting, hiring and training costs for employees in all categories, to fully deploy a work force of similar size
and skill to the same level of productivity as the existing work force.

The amounts allocated to current technology, assembled workforce and residual goodwill are being amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives of between six and ten years using the straight-line method. 

Acquisition of Arcus Technology Companies

On June 30, 1999, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Arcus Technology (USA), Inc. and
the assets of Arcus Technology (India) Limited (referred to as “Arcus” on a combined basis). Arcus special-
izes in data communications technologies including dense wave multiplexing (which allows multiple signals
to be transmitted over a single fiber optic cable) and “IP over SONET” (the technology used to code and
decode Internet traffic to send it over the telephone system). The acquisition was accounted for using purchase
accounting. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were included in
Cypress’s consolidated balance sheet as of and since June 30, 1999, the effective date of the purchase. There
are no significant differences between the accounting policies of Cypress and Arcus. The results of operations
of Arcus are included in Cypress’s consolidated results of operations during the second half of Cypress’s fiscal
year 1999.

Cypress acquired Arcus for a total consideration of $17.7 million, including cash of $11.5 million and stock of
$6.2 million. Through December 31, 2000, Cypress paid $10.5 million in cash and issued $6.2 million in
stock. Cypress incurred a one-time charge of $2.0 million in fiscal 2000 due to the acceleration of contractual
obligation. The remaining $1.0 million in cash will be paid as certain performance milestones are reached. The
total purchase price was allocated to the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
time of the acquisition based on independent appraisals and management estimates as follows:

(In thousands)

The valuation method used to value the in-process technology of Arcus is the “percentage of completion”
approach. The value of the in-process technology of Arcus is the discounted expected future cash flow attrib-
utable to the in-process technology, taking into consideration the percentage of completion of products utiliz-
ing this technology, utilization of pre-existing technology, the risks related to the characteristics and
applications of the technology, existing and future markets, and the technological risk associated with com-
pleting the development of the technology. The cash flow derived from the in-process technology projects was
discounted using a discount rate of 32.5%, which Cypress believes was appropriate for the risk of this technol-
ogy for which commercial feasibility had not been established. The percentage of completion for each in-pro-
cess project was determined by identifying milestones of completed project steps as compared to the
remaining milestones to be completed to bring the project to technical and commercial feasibility. Milestones

Fair value of tangible net assets $ 391

In-process research and development 2,500

Current technology 4,400

Assembled workforce 1,600

Deferred compensation 5,553

Excess of purchase price over identifiable net assets acquired 3,264

Total $ 17,708
��



were based on management’s estimate of tasks completed, value added and degree of difficulty of the portion
of the project completed as of the acquisition date, in comparison with the tasks to be completed to bring the
project to technical and commercial feasibility. A deduction of 7.5% to 12.0% of expected future revenue was
made in calculating future cash flows from in-process technology and attributed to previously existing technol-
ogy. 

The value of current technology was determined by estimating the future cash flows to be derived from prod-
ucts based on existing commercially feasible technologies at the date of the acquisition and discounting associ-
ated cash flow using a discount rate of 25.0%, which Cypress believes was appropriate for the business risks
inherent in manufacturing and marketing these products. Factors considered in estimating the future cash flow
to be derived from the existing technology include risks related to the characteristics and applications of the
technology, existing and future markets, and assessment of the age of the technology within its life span.

The value of the assembled workforce is based on estimated costs to replace the existing staff including
recruiting, hiring and training costs for employees in all categories to fully deploy a work force of similar size
and skill to the same level of productivity as the existing work force. Deferred compensation value is the cash
and stock consideration to be paid upon the future achievement of established performance milestones.

The amounts allocated to current technology, assembled workforce and residual goodwill are being amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives between six and ten years using the straight-line method. The
deferred compensation is being amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated timeframe required to
achieve the performance milestones, which is two years.

Acquisition of Anchor Chips, Incorporated

On May 25, 1999, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Anchor Chips, Inc. (“Anchor”), a
company that designs and markets micro-controller chips that support Universal Serial Bus applications. The
acquisition was accounted for using purchase accounting. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed were included in Cypress’s consolidated balance sheet as of and since May
25, 1999, the effective date of the purchase. There are no significant differences between the accounting poli-
cies of Cypress and Anchor. The results of operations of Anchor were included in Cypress’s consolidated
results of operations as of and since the effective date of the purchase.

Cypress paid approximately $15.0 million in cash. In addition, Cypress assumed net liabilities of approxi-
mately $0.9 million. The total purchase consideration of $15.9 million was allocated to the estimated fair value
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on a valuation completed by management, as follows:

In thousands

The valuation method used to value the in-process technology of Anchor is the “percentage of completion”
approach. The value of the in-process technology of Anchor is the discounted expected future cash flow attrib-
utable to the in-process technology, taking into consideration the percentage of completion of products utiliz-
ing this technology, utilization of pre-existing technology, the risks related to the characteristics and
applications of the technology, existing and future markets, and the technological risk associated with complet-
ing the development of the technology. The cash flow derived from the in-process technology projects was dis-
counted using a discount rate of 32.5%, which Cypress believes was appropriate for the risk of this technology
for which commercial feasibility had not been established. The percentage of completion for each in-process
project was determined by identifying milestones of completed project steps as compared to the remaining
milestones to be completed to bring the project to technical and commercial feasibility. Milestones were based
on management’s estimate of tasks completed, value added and degree of difficulty of the portion of the
project completed as of the acquisition date, in comparison with the tasks to be completed to bring the project
to technical and commercial feasibility. A deduction of 7.5% to 12.0% of expected future revenue was made in
calculating future cash flows from in-process technology and attributed to previously existing technology. As
of December 31, 2000, the actual development timelines and costs are in line with management’s estimates.

The value of the assembled workforce is based on estimated costs to replace the existing staff including
recruiting, hiring and training costs for employees in all categories to fully deploy a work force of similar size
and skill to the same level of productivity as the existing work force.

The value of current technology was determined by estimating the future cash flows to be derived from prod-
ucts based on existing commercially feasible technologies at the date of the acquisition and discounting associ-
ated cash flow using a discount rate of 25.0%, which Cypress believes was appropriate for the business risks
inherent in manufacturing and marketing these products. Factors considered in estimating the future cash flow

Fair value of tangible net liabilities $ (919)

In-process research and development 1,519

Assembled workforce 1,320

Current technology 13,036

Total $ 14,956
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to be derived from the existing technology include risks related to the characteristics and applications of the
technology, existing and future markets, and assessment of the age of the technology within its life span.

The amounts allocated to current technology, and assembled workforce are being amortized over their esti-
mated useful lives of five years using the straight-line method. There was no goodwill associated with the
acquisition of Anchor.

Development of in-process technology remains a substantial risk to Cypress due to factors including the
remaining effort to achieve technical feasibility, rapidly changing customer requirements and competitive
threats from other companies and technologies. Additionally, the value of other intangible assets acquired may
become impaired. The in-process research and development valuation as well as the valuation of other intangi-
ble assets was prepared by management or an independent appraisal firm, based on inputs from Cypress and
the acquired company’s management, utilizing valuation methods that are recognized by the SEC staff. How-
ever, there can be no assurance that the SEC staff will not take issue with assumptions used in the appraiser’s
valuation model and require Cypress to revise the amount allocated to in-process research and development. 

Pro forma results of operations for Arcus, Anchor and RadioCom are not presented, as they are not materially
different.

Note 5: Other Product Line Transactions
Sale of FCT Business

On February 25, 2000, Cypress sold its Fast CMOS Technology (“FCT”) business including inventories, prod-
uct software, all technical data and a license for the related intellectual property. Total proceeds from the sale
were $7.5 million and Cypress recorded a gain of $5.0 million from the sale. In conjunction with this sale,
Cypress entered into a supply agreement for the related existing inventories and future requirements, based on
historical run rates. Cypress has continued to supply product through the end of fiscal 2000, and completed its
obligations under the supply agreement during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000. Revenues from FCT products
were approximately 1% of 1999 revenues.

Acquisition from Altera

On October 5, 1999, Cypress announced that it had signed a definitive agreement with Altera Corporation
(“Altera”) to acquire Altera’s MAX 5000 Programmable Logic Device (“PLD”) product line and its equity
interest in Cypress’s wafer fabrication facility in Round Rock, Texas (“Fab 2”) for approximately $13.0 mil-
lion in cash. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. In 1988, Altera licensed its MAX 5000 family
of products to Cypress in consideration of manufacturing capacity. Altera later acquired a 17% equity interest
in the Round Rock wafer fabrication facility. By acquiring Altera's equity interest in October 1999, Fab 2 is
now 100% owned by Cypress. 

Note 6: Acquisition, Restructuring and Other Non-Recurring Costs
2000 Acquisition and Other Non-Recurring Costs

During fiscal 2000, Cypress recorded acquisition and merger-related costs of $56.2 million. In-process
research and development costs were $32.4 million. Amortization of intangible assets relating to current and
prior year acquisitions totaled $18.4 million. Transaction costs of $3.4 million, which consist primarily of non-
cash deferred compensation charges, legal, accounting and investment banking fees, were incurred during the
fiscal year. Cypress incurred a one-time charge of $2.0 million due to the acceleration of contractual obliga-
tions related to the Arcus acquisition.

1999 Acquisition, Restructuring and Other Non-Recurring Costs

During fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded a net $34.1 million in restructuring, merger and acquisition, and other
non-recurring costs. These one-time, non-recurring costs included a $12.3 million write-off of a certain manu-
facturing asset that was not in service and was subsequently scrapped and an $11.9 million one-time compen-
sation charge associated with retention and performance payments to key employees in December 1999. In the
first quarter of fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded one-time charges of $3.7 million associated with the merger with
IC Works. These charges were for investment banking fees and other professional fees. During fiscal 1999,
Cypress recorded $0.3 million in deferred compensation costs associated to the merger with Alation. Cypress
also recorded $8.8 million in costs associated with the purchases of Anchor and Arcus comprised of $4.0 mil-
lion for in-process technology, $1.6 million for transaction costs and $3.2 million in amortization of intangible
assets. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, Cypress acquired Altera’s MAX 5000 Programmable Logic
Device (“PLD”) product line and its equity interest in Cypress’s wafer fabrication facility in Round Rock,
Texas. As part of the transaction, Cypress recorded intangible assets associated with the product rights and
incurred $0.3 million for the amortization of these intangibles. These non-recurring charges were offset by a
reversal of $3.0 million of the 1998 restructuring reserve. The reversed charges related to $2.2 million of sev-
erance and other employee related charges and $0.3 million for the provision for phase-down and completion
of the Alphatec restructuring activities. Cypress also reversed $0.5 million of the 1998 restructuring reserve
for other fixed asset related charges that were no longer considered necessary. During fiscal 1999, Cypress
��



reversed $0.7 million of the 1996 restructuring reserve related to fixed asset de-installation charges that were
no longer required.

1998 Restructuring

During 1998, Cypress implemented an overall cost reduction plan and recorded a $58.9 million restructuring
charge related to the impairment of assets ($46.4 million), reduction in work force ($4.8 million) and other
transaction costs ($5.9 million). The restructuring entailed:

• The shutdown of Fab 3, located in Bloomington, Minnesota and consolidation of parts of Fab 3 opera-
tions with other operations of Cypress.

• The discontinuance of the 0.6 micron 256K static RAM production in Fab 2 located in Texas.

• The conversion of an existing research and development fab located in San Jose (“Fab 1”) to eight-inch 
capability in order to be compatible with the state of the art eight-inch Minnesota manufacturing facility.

• The transfer of Cypress's test operations from its subcontractor, Alphatec, in Thailand to Cypress's pro-
duction facility in the Philippines.

The restructuring activities described above included the termination of approximately 850 employees, prima-
rily from manufacturing, both at Cypress and at Alphatec.

During the second quarter of 1998, in conjunction with the closure of Fab 3, Cypress established a reserve for
$1.4 million to cover severance costs associated with the reduction of work force at that location. This was
based on the anticipated level of payments that would be made to personnel included in the work force reduc-
tion. As part of a review of inventory, it was noted that Cypress required an additional reserve of $0.5 million
to cover inventory that was written off. This related to a change in estimate regarding inventory that had been
previously reserved.     

The balance of the reserve at the beginning of fiscal 2000 was $1.8 million. Restructuring activities have been
substantially completed during fiscal 2000. The following table sets forth restructuring expense and charges
taken against the reserve from the date the restructuring commenced through December 31, 2000.

(In thousands)

(1) Classified on the Balance Sheet as part of accrued liabilities.
(2) The amount utilized represents cash payments related to severance of approximately 850 employees.

During fiscal 1999, Cypress reversed $3.7 million of previously provided restructuring costs. $2.2 million of
severance and other employee related charges and $0.3 million for the provision for phase-down and consoli-
dation of manufacturing facilities were reversed in conjunction with the completion of the Alphatec restructur-
ing activities. $0.6 million was reversed for other fixed asset related charges based on the determination that a
portion of the fixed asset removal costs accrual would not be required. These reversals related to Cypress’s
1998 restructuring activities. Cypress also reversed a $0.7 million reserve for fixed asset installation costs
related to its 1996 restructuring activities, which was no longer required. 

Restructuring activities associated with Fabs 2 and 3 were completed in May and July 1998, respectively, con-
sistent with Cypress’s restructuring schedule except for the disposal of equipment. $0.9 million of severance
and other employee related charges were reversed at that time. Fab 1 restructuring was not completed in Janu-
ary 1999 as originally planned. Cypress subsequently initiated plans to convert its R&D wafer facility in San
Jose to eight-inch capability; this conversion has now been completed. The Alphatec consolidation and trans-
fer activity was completed in January 1999, one month later than originally planned.

In fiscal 1998, Cypress (ICW) recorded $1.8 million related to the impairment of fixed assets.

Separate from the restructuring charge, Cypress recorded additional charges of $27.3 million, which were
recorded as operating expenses in the first quarter of 1998. These charges were for inventory reserves ($15.8
million), the write-off of pre-operating costs ($3.8 million), the write-off of an equity investment ($3.1 mil-
lion), costs incurred to reimburse a customer for certain product expenses incurred ($2.5 million) and the
write-off of obsolete equipment in Fab 4 ($2.1 million). The write-down of inventory was made to establish
incremental reserves for excess inventory and was recorded as cost of revenues.

 1998
Restructuring

Expense Utilized (Credits)

Balance
December 31,

2000

Write-down of inventory(1) $  3,250 $ (3,250) $ — $  —

Severance and other employee related charges(2) 5,334 (2,234) (3,100) —

Other fixed asset related charges(1) 3,030 (910) (2,120) —

Provision for phase-down and consolidation of
manufacturing facilities(1) 976 (637) (339) —

          Total $  12,590 $ (7,031) $ (5,559) $ —
��



The write-off of pre-operating costs included $2.9 million related to Cypress’s wafer fabrication operation in
Bloomington, Minnesota and $0.9 million related to its assembly and test operation in the Philippines. As a
result of restructuring activities, Cypress wrote off its previously capitalized pre-operating costs as an
impaired asset due to uncertainties surrounding their future economic benefits. These costs were written off to
cost of revenues. There were no capitalized pre-operating costs subsequent to the first quarter of 1998.

The $3.1 million write-off of the equity investment was recorded against net interest and other income to
reflect the decline in the value of an investment. Selling, general and administrative costs included the write-
off of $2.5 million in costs incurred to reimburse a customer for certain product expenses incurred. During
Cypress’s periodic review of equipment, some equipment was identified as obsolete and $2.1 million was
charged to cost of revenues to write-off the obsolete equipment.

1997 Restructuring Costs - Cypress (ICW)

During the fourth quarter of 1997, Cypress (ICW) made a decision to shut down its wafer fab located in San
Jose. In connection with the shut down of the wafer fab, Cypress (ICW) recorded a restructuring charge of
$9.9 million related to the impairment of assets ($3.9 million), non-cancelable operating lease commitments
($3.6 million), costs associated with a reduction in work force ($0.2 million) and other transaction costs ($2.2
million). The other transaction costs related primarily to inventory write-offs, expenses incurred to remove
and return leased equipment and brokerage and professional fees.

The following tables set forth charges taken against the reserve from the date the restructuring commenced
through the completion of restructuring activities in the second quarter of fiscal 2000, respectively. The actual
liquidation of substantially all of the impaired assets was completed in November 1998. The balance of the
reserve remaining was reversed and taken as a restructuring credit in the second quarter of fiscal 2000 when it
was determined that no outstanding commitments existed.

(In thousands)

(In thousands)

(1) Classified on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as part of accrued liabilities. 

Note 7: Equity and Debt Transactions

On November 30, 2000, the Board of Directors of Cypress authorized the repurchase of 5 million shares of
Cypress’s outstanding common stock.   On December 21, 2000, the Board of Directors of Cypress authorized
the repurchase of an additional 5 million shares of Cypress’s outstanding common stock, bringing the total
shares authorized in the repurchase program to 10 million. As of December 31, 2000, 6.3 million shares were
repurchased at an average cost of $22.90 per share. In conjunction with the stock repurchase program, the
Board of Directors authorized the sale of up to 2.5 million put warrants. Cypress sold put warrants through pri-
vate placements for which Cypress received $6.3 million through December 31, 2000. Cypress had a maxi-
mum potential obligation to purchase 1.5 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate price of $35.5
million as of December 31, 2000. The puts have various expiration periods from March 2001 through Septem-
ber 2001. Cypress has the right to settle the put warrants with cash or settle the difference between the exercise
price and the fair market value at the exercise date with stock or cash. No amount was classified out of stock-
holders’ equity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

On January 31, 2000, Cypress filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Under this shelf registration, which was effective February 8, 2000, as amended by a post-effec-
tive amendment thereto effective March 7, 2000, Cypress can, through January 2002, sell any combination of
debt securities, preferred stock and common stock in one or more offerings up to a total amount of $400.0 mil-
lion. The shelf registration statement allows Cypress flexibility to raise funds from the offering of debt securi-
ties, common stock, preferred stock or a combination thereof, subject to market conditions and Cypress’s

 Balance
January 2,

2000 Utilized Credits
Ending

Balance

Operating lease costs(1) $ 506 $ (21) $ (485) $ —

 1997
Restructuring

Reserve Utilized Credits
Ending

Balance

Operating lease costs(1) $  3,615 $ (3,130) $ (485) $ —

Severance and other employee related charges(1) 207 (207) — —

Transaction and other costs(1) 2,164 (2,164) — —

          Total $  5,986 $ (5,501) $ (485) $ —
��



capital needs. At December 31, 2000, the balance remaining related to the shelf registration statement is
$112.5 million.

During fiscal 1999, Cypress filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission. Under this shelf registration, Cypress could, through March 2001, sell any combination of debt secu-
rities, preferred stock and common stock in one or more offerings up to a total amount of $300.0 million. The
entire amount of this shelf registration statement has been used. Pursuant to the shelf registration, on March
29, 1999, Cypress sold 7.2 million shares of common stock, of which 2.5 million shares were sold by selling
stockholders. Cypress received approximately $33.8 million in proceeds net of issuance costs and Cypress did
not receive any proceeds from the shares sold by the selling stockholders.

In March 1999, Cypress announced a program whereby all U.S. employees were offered loans to facilitate the
exercise of vested stock options. Under the terms of the program, only options which were vested as of March
1, 1999 and whose exercise price was less than or equal to $9.75 could qualify for a loan. The loans, including
interest, are due at the earlier of three days following the sale of the shares, within thirty days of the date the
individual ceases to be an employee of Cypress or 3 years from the grant date of the loan. The loans bear inter-
est and are secured by Cypress common shares. At December 31, 2000, loans receivable and accrued interest
under this program totaled $1.8 million. Amounts receivable under subsidiary loan programs were $0.3 mil-
lion at December 31, 2000.

In fiscal years 1997 and 1998, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 14.0 million shares of
Cypress’s common stock. Through January 3, 1999, 8.1 million shares had been repurchased under this entire
program for $67.5 million. On February 25, 1999, the Board of Directors terminated the stock repurchase pro-
gram. The unsold repurchased shares were and are expected to continue to be used for option exercises under
Cypress’s 1994 Stock Option Plan and stock purchases under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. During
1998, Cypress reissued 1.8 million shares of common stock under such plans. During fiscal 1999, Cypress
reissued a total of 8.3 million shares in relation to the stock offering described above and in conjunction with
the 1994 Stock Option Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Such shares had been repurchased under the
1997/1998 repurchase programs as well as repurchase programs prior to 1997.

Convertible Subordinated Notes

On September 7, 2000, Cypress called for the redemption of all its 6.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes
(“Notes”) due in 2002. The aggregate amount of principal outstanding at the time of the call was approxi-
mately $160 million. Holders of the Notes could convert their Notes into shares of Cypress’s common stock at
a conversion rate of approximately 42.33 shares of stock per $1,000 principal amount of the Notes. Substan-
tially all of the Notes were converted prior to the redemption deadline of October 2, 2000 increasing the
amount of common stock outstanding by 6.8 million shares. Unamortized bond issuance costs of $1.9 million
(pre-tax) were written off to interest income and other. 

On June 26, 2000, Cypress completed a $287.5 million registered-placement of 5-year convertible subordi-
nated notes. The notes are due in the year 2005, with a coupon rate of 3.75% and an initial conversion pre-
mium of 27.0%. The notes are convertible into approximately 4.6 million shares of common stock and are
callable by Cypress no earlier than July 5, 2003. Net proceeds were $279.6 million, after issuance costs of $7.9
million.

On January 19, 2000, Cypress completed a $283.0 million registered-placement of 5-year convertible subordi-
nated notes. The notes are due in the year 2005, with a coupon rate of 4.0% and an initial conversion premium
of 28.5%. The notes are convertible into approximately 6.1 million shares of common stock and are callable by
Cypress no earlier than February 5, 2003. Net proceeds were $275.2 million, after issuance costs of $7.8 mil-
lion.

In 1998, Cypress retired a total of $15.0 million principal of its $175.0 million, 6.0% Convertible Subordinated
Notes (“Notes”) for $12.9 million, resulting in a pre-tax net gain of $1.7 million. The gain was offset by the
write-off of bond issuance costs of $0.4 million (pre-tax). The net gain was recorded as interest income and
other. The Notes were called on October 2, 2000.

Customer Advances

In October 2000, Cypress entered into a financing and supply agreement with ST Microelectronics, Inc. (“ST
Micro”). The agreement called for ST Micro to provide funding to Cypress for the purpose of purchasing
equipment and increasing fabrication capacity in order to supply ST Micro with product at future dates accord-
ing to the supply agreement. ST Micro will maintain a security interest in the equipment purchased. As of
December 31, 2000, Cypress has recorded the repayment obligation as a customer advance showing $20.2 mil-
lion in current liabilities and $51.8 million as a long-term liability. The supply agreement calls for Cypress to
make available to ST Micro a minimum quantity of wafers each year from 2001 through 2003.    
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Note 8: Earnings (Loss) Per Share

As required by SFAS 128, following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic
and diluted earnings (loss) per share computation:

(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

At December 31, 2000, January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999, options to purchase 6,278,000, 47,000 and
24,774,000 shares, respectively, of common stock were outstanding, but were excluded in the computation of
diluted EPS, as their effect was anti-dilutive. Convertible debentures outstanding at January 2, 2000, and Jan-
uary 3, 1999 convertible to 6,772,000 and 6,772,000 shares, respectively, of common stock were also excluded
from diluted EPS, as their effect was anti-dilutive.

Note 9: Common Stock Option and Other Employee Benefit Plans
Stock Option Plans

Cypress has two main stock option plans: the 1999 Stock Option Plan and the 1994 Stock Option Plan.

In 1999, Cypress adopted the 1999 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”). Under the terms of the Plan, options may
be granted to qualified employees, including those of acquired companies and consultants of Cypress or its
majority-owned subsidiaries. Options become exercisable over a vesting period as determined by the Board of
Directors and expire over terms not exceeding ten years from the date of grant. The option price for options
granted, under the Plan, is typically equal to the fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant. 

In 1994, Cypress adopted the 1994 Stock Option Plan, which replaced Cypress’s 1985 Incentive Stock Option
Plan and the 1988 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (“Terminated Plans”) with respect to future option grants.
Under the terms of the 1994 Stock Option Plan, options may be granted to qualified employees, consultants,
officers and directors of Cypress or its majority-owned subsidiaries. Options become exercisable over a vest-
ing period as determined by the Board of Directors and expire over terms not exceeding twenty years from the
date of grant. The option price for shares granted, under the 1994 Stock Option Plan, is typically equal to the
fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant. The 1994 Stock Option Plan includes shares that
remained available under the Terminated Plans and provides for an annual increase in shares available for
issuance pursuant to incentive stock options equal to 4.5% of Cypress's outstanding common stock at the end
of each fiscal year.

In December 2000, Cypress employees were offered the opportunity to exchange their stock options for a
promise to issue new options six months and one day after the cancellation of the forfeited options. The new
options will be granted on June 13, 2001, with an exercise price equal to the NYSE closing price on the same
day. Any grant issued prior to December 2, 2000 was eligible for this program. The new option will be issued
with 12 months vested as of June 13, 2001 and the balance will vest 1/60th per month, regardless of how many
options were vested at the time of the cancellation election. 1,476 employees canceled 3,701,080 options with
exercise prices between $20.90 and $54.20 per share.

 In January 1998, substantially all outstanding stock options with an exercise price in excess of $9.75 per share
were cancelled and replaced with new options having an exercise price of $9.75 per share, the fair market
value on the date that the employees accepted the re-pricing. A total of 10,464,000 shares were re-priced. This
re-pricing excluded the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the executive staff of Cypress. 

The following table summarizes Cypress's stock option activity and related weighted average exercise price
for each category for the years ended December 31, 2000, January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999. 

 2000 1999 1998

  Income  Shares 

Per-
Share 

Amount  Income  Shares

Per-
Share 

Amount 

 

(Loss)  Shares 

Per-
Share 

Amount 

Basic EPS:

  Net income (loss) $ 277,308 121,126 $ 2.29 $ 88,130 108,156 $ 0.81 $(101,594) 105,238 $ (0.97)

Effects of dilutive 
 securities:

  6.0% Convertible notes 4,800 5,079 — — — —

  4.0% Convertible notes 6,848 5,749 — — — —

  3.75% Convertible notes 3,361 2,387 — — — —

  7.0% Convertible notes 6 16 — — — —

  Warrants — 4 — — — —

  Options — 9867 — 7,371 — —

Diluted EPS:

  Net income (loss) $ 292,323 144,228 $ 2.03 $ 88,130 115,527 $ 0.76 $(101,594) 105,238 $ (0.97)
�




Shares Under Stock Option Plan

(In thousands, except per-share data)

Cypress has, in connection with the acquisitions of various companies, assumed the stock option plans of each
acquired company. During fiscal 2000, a total of approximately 0.6 million shares of Cypress’s common stock
have been reserved for issuance under the assumed plans and the related options are included in the preceding
table. At December 31, 2000, stock options available for grant were 2.3 million. The increase in options avail-
able for grants was 6.2 million under all option plans during fiscal 2000.

All options granted by the 1994 and 1999 Stock Option Plans were at an exercise price equal to the market
value of Cypress’s stock at the date of grant. The weighted average estimated fair value at the date of grant, as
defined by SFAS 123, for options granted in 2000, 1999 and 1998, was $33.17, $8.96 and $3.61 per option,
respectively. The estimated grant date fair value is calculated using the Black-Scholes model. The Black-
Scholes model, as well as other currently accepted option valuation models, was developed to estimate the fair
value of freely tradable, fully transferable options without vesting restrictions, which significantly differ from
Cypress's stock option awards. These models also require highly subjective assumptions, including future
stock price volatility and expected time until exercise, which greatly affect the calculated grant date fair value.

The following weighted average assumptions are included in the estimated grant date fair value calculations
for Cypress's stock option awards:

Significant option groups outstanding as of December 31, 2000 and the related weighted average exercise
price and contractual life information, are as follows:

(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

Employee Qualified Stock Purchase Plan

In 1986, Cypress approved an Employee Qualified Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), which allows eligible
employees of Cypress and its subsidiaries to purchase shares of common stock through payroll deductions.
The ESPP consists of consecutive 24-month offering periods composed of four 6-month exercise periods. The
shares can be purchased at the lower of 85% of the fair market value of the common stock at the date of com-

 2000 1999 1998

 Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price 

Options outstanding, 
beginning of year 

25,712 $  11.40 26,810) $  8.25 24,096) $ 9.23

Options authorized 
or reserved

Options cancelled (5,818) 32.51 (2,061) 9.81 (13,901) 11.21

Options granted 10,415) 39.42 8,776) 17.27 17,788) 9.03

Options exercised (5,927) 8.25 (7,813) 7.57 (1,173) 5.15

Options outstanding, 
end of year 

24,382) 16.93 25,712) 11.40 26,810) 8.25

Options exercisable at 
December 31, 2000 

9,134 $ 10.90

 2000 1999 1998

Expected life 5 years 7 years 7 years

Risk-free interest rate 5.54% 5.76% 5.41%

Volatility 1.7701 0.5668 0.5467

Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Range of Option Exercise Prices

 Outstanding  Exercisable Remaining 
Life (years) Shares Price  Shares Price

$ 0.03 — $ 7.38 2,489 $ 3.77 1,575 $ 3.97 5.27

$ 7.56 — $ 9.31 4,256 $ 8.62 1,936 $ 8.57 6.79

$ 9.63 — $ 9.75 4,115 $ 9.74 2,814 $ 9.75 6.00

$ 9.88 — $16.00 2,958 $11.46 1,359 $11.27 6.75

$16.19 — $20.88 857 $19.51 335 $17.83 7.90

$21.50 — $21.50 3,215 $21.50 670 $21.50 8.75

$22.13 — $29.25 2,597 $23.80 238 $23.95 9.57

$31.01 — $36.69 2,875 $35.51 82 $34.94 9.75

$38.75 — $54.19 1,020 $42.06 125 $39.89 9.38

$ 0.03 — $54.19 24,382 $16.93 9,134 $10.90 7.55
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mencement of this two-year offering period or at the last day of each 6-month exercise period. Purchases are
limited to 10% of an employee's eligible compensation, subject to a maximum annual employee contribution
limited to a $25,000 market value (calculated as the employee's enrollment price multiplied by the number of
purchased shares). Of the 13,030,746 shares authorized under the ESPP, 8,633,773 shares were issued through
2000 including 1,313,773 in 2000, 953,000 in 1999 and 890,000 in 1998.

Compensation costs (included in pro forma net income and net income per-share amounts) for the grant date
fair value, as defined by SFAS 123, of the purchase rights granted under the ESPP were calculated using the
Black-Scholes model. The following weighted average assumptions are included in the estimated grant date
fair value calculations for rights to purchase stock under the ESPP:

The weighted average estimated grant date fair value, as defined by SFAS 123, or rights to purchase stock
under the ESPP granted in 2000, 1999 and 1998 were $27.31, $7.50 and $2.56 per share, respectively.

Pro Forma Net Income (Loss) and Net Income (Loss) Per Share

If Cypress had recorded compensation costs based on the estimated grant date fair value, as defined by SFAS
123, for awards granted under its stock option plans and its Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Cypress's pro
forma net income (loss) and earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2000, January 2, 2000 and
January 3, 1999 would have been as follows:

(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

The pro forma effect on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share for 2000, 1999 and 1998 is not rep-
resentative of the pro forma effect on net income in future years because it does not take into consideration pro
forma compensation expense related to grants prior to 1995.

Deferred Compensation

Cypress recorded provisions for deferred compensation of approximately $15.1 million, $1.7 million and $2.6
million for the difference between the grant or issuance price and the deemed fair value for financial reporting
purposes of certain Cypress common stock options granted or common stock issued in fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000, January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999, respectively. These amounts are being amortized
over the vesting period of the individual stock options or stock, generally a period of four to five years.
Deferred compensation expense, which was recognized, totaled approximately $6.6 million, $1.8 million and
$1.1 million in fiscal years 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

Other Employee Benefit Plans

Cypress also maintains a Section 401(k) Plan, New Product Bonus Plan, Key Employee Bonus Plan and
Deferred Compensation Plan. The 401(k) Plan provides participating employees with an opportunity to accu-
mulate funds for retirement and hardship. Eligible participants may contribute up to 15% of their eligible earn-
ings to the Plan Trust. Cypress does not make contributions to the plan.

Under the New Product Bonus Plan, which was adopted in 1997, all qualified employees are provided bonus
payments based on Cypress attaining certain levels of new product revenue, plus attaining certain levels of
profitability. In 2000, 1999 and 1998, $14.3 million, $6.9 million and $0.7 million, respectively, were charged
to operations in connection with the New Product Bonus Plan.

In 1994, a Key Employee Bonus Plan was established, which provides for bonus payments to selected
employees upon achievement of certain Cypress and individual performance targets. In 2000, 1999 and 1998,
$15.1 million, $4.9 million and $4.1 million, respectively, were charged to operations in connection with this
Plan. Employees eligible under the Key Employee Bonus Plan can elect to participate in the Key Employee
Deferred Compensation Plan, which allows eligible employees to defer their salary, bonus and other related
payments. Costs incurred by Cypress for the Key Employee Deferred Compensation Plan during fiscal years
2000, 1999 and 1998 were insignificant.

 2000 1999 1998

Expected life 6 months 6 months 6 months

Risk-free interest rate 5.99% 5.94% 5.94%

Volatility 2.5507 0.5773 0.5773

Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

 2000 1999 1998
Pro forma net income (loss):
  Basic $ 202,242 $  55,424 $  (132,668)
  Diluted $ 217,256 $  55,424 $  (132,668)
Pro forma net income (loss) per share:
  Basic $ 1.67 $  0.51 $  (1.26)
  Diluted $ 1.51 $  0.48 $  (1.26)
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Note 10: Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes are summarized below. Income before taxes is principally
attributed to domestic operations.

Components of the Provision for Income Taxes

(In thousands) Year Ended

The tax provision (benefit) differs from the amounts obtained by applying the statutory U.S. Federal Income
Tax Rate to income before taxes as shown below.

Tax Provision Difference

(In thousands) Year Ended

The components of the net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, under SFAS No. 109
were as follows:
(In thousands) Year Ended

December 31,
2000

January 2,
2000

January 3,
1999

U.S. income (loss) before provision for taxes $ 278,679 $ 62,890 $ (138,228)
Foreign income (loss) before provision for taxes 91,491 32,279 25,526
Income (loss) before provision for taxes  370,170  95,169  (112,702)
Current tax expense:
  U.S. Federal 81,267  15,732 (10,811)
  State and local 4,284) 518 412)
  Foreign 1,877) 760 511)
     Total current 87,428) 17,010 (9,888)
Deferred tax expense (benefit):
  U.S. Federal (169) (9,971) (4,549)
  State and local 5,603) — 3,329)
     Total deferred 5,434) (9,971) (1,220)
          Total $  92,862 $  7,039 $  (11,108)

December 31, 
2000

January 2, 
2000

January 3, 
1999

Statutory rate 35%) 35%) 35%)
Tax at U.S. statutory rate $ 129,559%) $ 33,309%) $ (39,446)%
Foreign earnings (30,145)% (11,443)% (4,153)%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 4,214%) 114%) 3,329%)
Tax credits (5,500)% (9,568)% (3,700)%
Prior year net operating losses, credits and other 
benefits not previously recognized

(26,180)% (8,968)% —%)

Future benefits not recognized —%) —%) 32,658%)
In-process R&D and amortization of intangibles 20,746%) 4,326%) —%)
Other, net 168%) (731)% 204%)
  Total $ 92,862%) $ 7,039%) $ (11,108)%

December 31, 2000 January 2, 2000

Deferred tax assets:

  Deferred income on sales to distributors $ 23,287 $ 16,290

  Reserves and accruals 33,934) 48,731)

  Credits and net operating loss carryovers 17,644) 44,263)

     Total deferred tax assets 74,865) 109,284)

Deferred tax liabilities:

  Excess of tax over book depreciation (45,095) (44,016)

  Intangibles arising from acquisitions (58,402) (12,093)

  Other, net (107) (107)

     Total deferred tax liabilities (103,604) (56,216)

Net deferred tax asset (liability) (28,739) 53,068)

Valuation allowance —) (42,569)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) after valuation allowance $ (28,739) $ 10,499)
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Tax benefits arising from employee stock transactions of $56.7 million and $13.8 million were realized in fis-
cal 2000 and 1999, respectively, and were credited to shareholders’ equity. Cypress’s net operating loss carry-
overs expire from 2010 through 2019 for federal tax purposes. 

A valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets decreased from $42.6 million to zero from fiscal 1999 to
2000, as Cypress believes it will realize all of its deferred tax assets.

During 1998, the United States Internal Revenue Service began an examination of tax returns for fiscal years
1994 through 1996. The examination concluded in June 2000. The outcome of the examination did not have a
material effect on Cypress’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Note 11: Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Lease Commitments

Cypress leases most of its manufacturing and office facilities under non-cancelable operating lease agreements
that expire at various dates through 2012. These leases require Cypress to pay taxes, insurance, and mainte-
nance expenses and provide for renewal options at the then fair market rental value of the property.

In June 1999, Cypress (Alation) moved its facilities and entered into a five-year operating agreement which
required it to pay property taxes, insurance and normal costs. In September 2000, Cypress successfully negoti-
ated the termination of this agreement with no consequence. 

In April 1997, Cypress sold capital equipment located in its Minnesota wafer fabrication facility to Fleet Cap-
ital Leasing (“Fleet”) in a sale-leaseback agreement. In October 1997, Cypress entered into a similar agree-
ment with Comdisco, Inc. (“Comdisco”) for other capital equipment located in Minnesota. Cypress received a
total of $28.2 million from Fleet and Comdisco in exchange for the capital equipment and as a result of the
transactions, recorded an immaterial gain that is being amortized over the life of the leases.

In 1994 and 1995, Cypress entered into two operating lease agreements with respect to its office and manufac-
turing facilities, in San Jose, which expired in 1999, and Minnesota, which expires in 2004. In October 1999,
Cypress entered into a new operating lease agreement for the San Jose office, which expires in 2004 with the
same lessor for the same facilities. In April 1996, Cypress entered into an additional lease agreement which
expires in 2001 for two office facilities in San Jose. These agreements require quarterly payments that vary
based on the London Interbank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”), plus a spread. All leases provide Cypress with the
option of either acquiring the property at its original cost or arranging for the property to be acquired at the end
of the respective lease terms. Cypress is contingently liable under certain first-loss clauses for up to $50.9 mil-
lion as of December 31, 2000. First loss clauses state that Cypress is potentially liable for any decline in the
value of the property up to a specified percentage. The purchase option then permits Cypress to acquire the
property at the lower value. Based on management’s estimate of the fair value of the properties, no liability
was required to be recorded at December 31, 2000, January 2, 2000 or January 3, 1999. Furthermore, Cypress
is required to maintain a specific level of restricted cash or investments to serve as collateral for these leases
and maintain compliance with certain financial covenants. As of December 31, 2000, the amount of restricted
investments recorded was $60.7 million, which is in compliance with these agreements. These restricted cash
or investments are classified as non-current on the balance sheet.

The aggregate annual rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2000 are
as follows:
(In thousands)

Rental expense was approximately $18.9 million in 2000, $19.5 million in 1999 and $22.2 million in 1998.

Litigation and Asserted Claims

The semiconductor industry has experienced a substantial amount of litigation regarding patent and other
intellectual property rights. From time to time, Cypress has received, and may receive in the future, communi-
cations alleging that its products or its processes may infringe on product or process technology rights held by
others. Cypress is currently, and may in the future be, involved in litigation with respect to alleged infringe-
ment by Cypress of another party’s patents. In the future, Cypress may be involved with litigation to:

• Enforce its patents or other intellectual property rights.

Fiscal Year  

2001 $ 13,508

2002 11,873

2003 10,421

2004 7,673

2005 2,518

2006 and thereafter 2,554

  Total $ 48,547
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• Protect its trade secrets and know-how.

• Determine the validity or scope of the proprietary rights of others.

• Defend against claims of infringement or invalidity.

Such litigation has in the past and could in the future result in substantial costs and diversion of management
resources. Such litigation could also result in payment of substantial damages and/or royalties or prohibitions
against utilization of essential technologies and could have a material adverse effect on Cypress’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

On November 16, 2000, Momentum, Inc. filed a complaint in the Santa Clara County Superior Court against
Cypress for breach of warranty and deceit, in which it seeks consequential, indirect and punitive damages. We
have reviewed and are investigating the allegations in the complaint. In February 2001, the Momentum com-
plaint was dismissed, but they were given thirty days to refile. As of March 22, 2001, we had not been
informed that Momentum had amended and/or refiled its complaint. Based on the information available at this
time, we believe that the suit against us is without merit. Cypress will continue to vigorously defend this mat-
ter. While no assurance can be given regarding the outcome of this action, we believe that the final outcome of
the matter will not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations. How-
ever, because of the nature and inherent uncertainties of litigation, should the outcome of this action be unfa-
vorable, we may be required to pay damages and other expenses, which could have a material adverse effect
on our financial position and results of operations.

On October 3, 2000, U.S. Philips Corp. filed a complaint against Cypress and five co-defendants in the Federal
Court for the Southern District of New York for infringement of a U.S. patent. We have reviewed and investi-
gated the allegations in the complaint and believe that we have meritorious defenses to these allegations.
Cypress will vigorously defend itself in this matter. While no assurance can be given regarding the outcome of
this action, we believe that the final outcome of the matter will not have a material effect on our consolidated
financial position or results of operations. However, because of the nature and inherent uncertainties of litiga-
tion, should the outcome of this action be unfavorable, we may be required to pay damages and other
expenses, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations.

On June 12, 2000, Cypress filed a complaint in the Superior Court of California, against Altera Corporation for
tortious interference with existing contractual relations, tortious interference with prospective economic rela-
tions, misappropriation of trade secrets and unfair competition. The complaint arises from Altera’s interference
with a multi-year agreement to collaborate on research and development between Cypress and Right Track
CAD Corporation. In February 2001, we amended our complaint to add a cause of action based on fraud. We
believe that we will ultimately prevail in this matter. While no assurance can be given regarding the outcome
of this action, we believe that the final outcome of the matter will not have a material effect on Cypress’s con-
solidated financial position or results of operations. However, because of the nature and inherent uncertainties
of litigation, should the outcome of this action be unfavorable, Cypress may be required to pay legal fees and
other expenses that are not expected to have a material adverse effect on Cypress’s financial position and
results of operations.

During 1998, EMI Group of North America, Inc. (“EMI”) filed suit against Cypress in the Federal Court in
Delaware, claiming that we infringed on four patents owned by EMI. Cypress and EMI entered into a license
agreement in February 1999, for one of the four patents in the lawsuit. EMI then withdrew two of the four pat-
ents from the lawsuit, including the patent related to the licensing agreement. The case involving the remaining
two patents went to trial in October 1999. The jury ruled in our favor, finding that we infringed none of the
patent claims and that each asserted claim was invalid due to prior art  and physical impossibility (i.e., the pat-
ents require a step that is physically impossible to perform). EMI has filed an appeal, and we intend to defend
ourselves vigorously. However, should the outcome of this action be unfavorable, our business, financial con-
dition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

In January 1998, an attorney representing the estate of Mr. Jerome Lemelson contacted Cypress and charged
that we infringed certain patents owned by Mr. Lemelson and/or a foundation controlled by Mr. Lemelson’s
estate. On February 26, 1999, the Lemelson attorneys sued Cypress and 87 other companies in the United
States District Court for the District of Arizona for infringement of 16 patents. In May 2000, the Court stayed
litigation on 14 of the 16 patents in view of concurrent litigation in Nevada on the same 14 patents, brought
against the Lemelson Partnership by manufacturers of machine vision and bar coding equipment.  We have
reviewed and investigated the allegations in the complaint and believe that the suit against us is without merit.
Cypress will vigorously defend itself in this matter. While no assurance can be given regarding the outcome of
this action, we believe that the final outcome of the matter will not have a material effect on our consolidated
financial position or results of operations. However, because of the nature and inherent uncertainties of litiga-
tion, should the outcome of this action be unfavorable, we may be required to pay damages and other
expenses, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations.

In June 1997, Cypress commenced a declaratory judgment action in the United States District Court for the
District of Nevada against the Li Second Family Trust (“the Trust”). In this action, we asked for declaratory
relief to the effect that a U.S. patent relating to a part of the process for manufacturing semiconductors is unen-
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forceable, invalid and not infringed by Cypress. The Trust has counter-claimed for patent infringement on the
same patent, alleging such patent covers oxide-isolated integrated circuits. In May 1999, in a related case, the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia ruled that the patent is unenforceable due to
inequitable conduct by Dr. Li and his attorneys in obtaining the patent. The Trust appealed, and in November
2000, the Virginia court’s ruling was upheld by the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit.
Therefore, we believe our defenses to the counter-claim are meritorious, and we intend to continue to defend
ourselves vigorously. While no assurance can be given regarding the final outcome of this action, we believe
that the final outcome of the matters will not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or
results of operations. However, should the outcome of this action be unfavorable, our business, financial con-
dition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

On October 2, 1997, Cypress filed an action against Kevin Yourman, Joseph Weiss, and their associated law
offices in the Superior Court of California (“Superior Court”) in Santa Clara County for malicious civil prosecu-
tion in the underlying securities fraud actions initiated by Messrs. Yourman and Weiss in 1992. The underlying
securities fraud actions were dismissed because no officer of Cypress made any actionable false or misleading
statements or omissions. An appeal affirmed the lower court’s finding that Messrs. Yourman and Weiss failed to
put forth evidence showing a genuine issue of fact with regard to any statements by Cypress’s officers. On May
4, 1999, the Superior Court granted a summary judgment motion by Messrs. Yourman and Weiss, holding that
Messrs. Yourman and Weiss had probable cause to bring the underlying litigation. Cypress is appealing the deci-
sion. However, the results of litigation are unpredictable. Cypress believes that this action, regardless of its out-
come, will have little, if any, effect on Cypress’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Purchase Commitments

At December 31, 2000, Cypress had purchase commitments aggregating $74.6 million, principally for manu-
facturing equipment and facilities, and bulk gas and nitrogen. These commitments relate to purchases to be
made in 2001 of $69.4 million and the remainder is committed through 2008. Commitments for 2001 pur-
chases will be funded through a combination of cash resources, retirement of investments, the $283.0 million
4.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes and the $287.5 million 3.75% Convertible Subordinated Notes (see
Note 7).

Note 12: Related Parties

Between 1992 and 1995, Cypress made cost-basis investments in QuickLogic Corporation (“QuickLogic”)
Series D and Series E preferred stock. In June 1996, Cypress received $4.5 million from QuickLogic, the orig-
inal intent of which was to obtain a minority interest in Cypress Semiconductor (Texas) Corporation (“CTI”)
and to guarantee fab capacity. Cypress classified the $4.5 million as other long-term liabilities in 1996, await-
ing final negotiation of the terms and transaction approval from Altera, an existing minority interest share-
holder. In March 1997, Cypress signed a definitive agreement with QuickLogic involving termination of an
existing joint development, licensing and foundry agreement for antifuse Field Programmable Gate Array
(“FPGA”) products and the execution of a new foundry agreement. Under the new agreement, Cypress ceased
development, marketing and selling of antifuse-based FPGA products. In return, QuickLogic paid $4.5 mil-
lion, which represented $3.5 million of non-recurring engineering revenue related to the sale of technology
rights and $1.0 million of compensation for inventory and other assets, and issued shares of QuickLogic com-
mon stock that increased Cypress's equity position in the privately-held QuickLogic to greater than 20%.
Cypress also entered into a five-year wafer-supply agreement to provide FPGA products to QuickLogic. Rev-
enues and net income contributed by the FPGA product line during 1997 were not significant.

In the first quarter of 1998, due to QuickLogic's history of recording losses, Cypress determined that its invest-
ment in QuickLogic had declined in value and the decline in value was not temporary. Accordingly, Cypress
wrote-off its investment in QuickLogic to reflect this decline. During the second half of 1998 and throughout
1999, due to the resurgence in the semiconductor industry, QuickLogic began recording profits. In October
1999, QuickLogic announced its initial public offering. Cypress sold its investment in QuickLogic in October
1999 and as a result, recorded a $36.2 million gain.

Cypress recorded sales to QuickLogic of $7.1 million and $2.3 million in 1999 and 1998, respectively. At fis-
cal year-ends 1999 and 1998, Cypress had a receivable due from QuickLogic of $0.9 and $0.6 million, respec-
tively. Due to Cypress’s sale of its investment in October 1999, QuickLogic is not considered a related party in
fiscal 2000. 

Note 13: Segment Information

Historically, Cypress has disclosed two reportable segments, Memory Products and Non-memory Products.
The Memory Products business segment includes static Random Access Memories. The Non-memory Prod-
ucts business segment includes programmable logic products, data communication devices, computer prod-
ucts, non-volatile memory products and wafers manufactured by the foundry.

On October 16, 2000, Cypress announced the formation of new divisions in order to enhance its focus on com-
munications market segments. The WAN (Wide Area Networks) and SAN (Storage Area Networks) divisions
��



are helping provide product definition in the networking arena.   Similarly, the WIT (Wireless Terminal) and
WIN (Wireless Infrastructure) divisions help focus our efforts in the wireless space. The Computation market
segment includes products used in computers, peripherals, and other applications. Cypress’s current memory
and non-memory business segments continue to operate as they have in the past.   The market focus is
expected to provide systems knowledge, cross-product-line product portfolio definition, early engagement
with strategic accounts and added management of R&D spending.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies (see Note 1). Cypress evaluates the performance of its two business segments based on
profit or loss from operations before income taxes, excluding non-recurring gains and losses.

Cypress’s reportable business segments are strategic business units that offer different products. Products that
fall under the two business segments differ in nature, are manufactured utilizing different technologies and
have a different end-purpose. As such, they are managed separately. Memory Products are characterized more
as a commodity, which is depicted by high unit sales volume and lower gross margins. These products are
manufactured using more advanced technology. A significant portion of the wafers produced for Memory
Products are manufactured at Cypress's technologically advanced, eight-inch wafer production facility located
in Minnesota (Fab 4). Memory Products are used by a variety of end-users but the product is used specifically
for the storage and retrieval of information. In contrast to Memory Products, unit sales of Non-Memory Prod-
ucts are generally lower than Memory Products, but sell at higher gross margins. Some Non-memory Products
are manufactured utilizing less technologically advanced processes. A majority of wafers for Non-memory
Products are manufactured at Cypress’s six-inch wafer production facility located in Texas (Fab 2). Products in
the Non-memory segment perform functions such as timing management, data transfer and routing in com-
puter, communications and storage systems. Products range from high volume USB interfaces for personal
computers to high value products such as our OC-48 SERDES device for optical communications systems.

The tables below set forth information about the reportable business segments for fiscal years 2000, 1999 and
1998. Cypress does not allocate interest income and expense, income taxes or non-recurring items to seg-
ments. Cypress does not allocate assets to segments. In addition, business segments do not have significant
non-cash items other than depreciation and amortization in reported profit or loss.

Business Segment Net Revenues

(In thousands)

Business Segment Income (Loss) Before Provision for Income Taxes

(In thousands)

Business Segment Depreciation and Amortization

(In thousands)

Market Segment Information

The tables below set forth information about the market segments formed during fiscal 2000. Cypress operated
and reported its financial information using the Business Segments disclosed above in the fiscal years ended
1999 and 1998, and therefore did not identify or report separate Market Segment information. Market Segment
data has been provided to the extent that it is available. Cypress does not allocate income taxes or non-recur-
ring items to segments. In addition, market segments do not have significant non-cash items other than depre-
ciation and amortization in reported profit or loss.

2000 1999 1998

Memory $ 638,111 $ 309,002 $ 229,581

Non-memory 649,676 436,040 359,334

  Total consolidated revenues $ 1,287,787 $ 745,042 $ 588,915

2000 1999 1998

Memory $ 184,279 $  (19,091) $  (88,056)

Non-memory 200,289 104,789 33,234

Acquisitions, restructuring and other non-recurring costs (55,729) (34,091) (60,737)

Interest income and other 64,964 53,205 14,133

Interest expense (23,633) (9,643) (11,276)

  Income (loss) before provision for income taxes $ 370,170 $ 95,169 $(112,702)

2000 1999 1998

Memory $ 73,067 $  67,306 $  89,500

Non-memory 72,344 41,580 27,704

  Total consolidated depreciation and amortization $ 145,411 $ 108,886 $ 117,204
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Market Segment Net Revenues 

(In thousands)

Market Segment Income (Loss) Before Provision for Income Taxes

(In thousands)

Geographic Area

Revenues are attributed to countries based on the customer location. Revenues by geographic locations were: 
(In thousands)

Assets (property, plant and equipment, net) by geographic locations were: 
(In thousands)

Note 14: Derivative Financial Instruments

Cypress has foreign subsidiaries that operate and sell Cypress’s products in various global markets. As a
result, Cypress is exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Cypress utilizes various hedge
instruments, primarily forward contracts and currency option contracts, to manage its exposure associated
with firm intercompany and third-party transactions and net asset and liability positions denominated in non-
functional currencies. Cypress does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading pur-
poses.

Forward contracts associated with firm third-party transactions are accounted for as hedges and recognition of
gains and losses is deferred until settlement of the underlying commitments. Other forward contracts are not
accounted for as hedges and, therefore, the unrealized gains and losses are recognized in other income, net in
advance of the actual foreign currency cash flows with the fair value of these forward contracts being recorded
in other assets or other liabilities.

The table below provides information as of December 31, 2000 of Cypress’s forward contracts. The table pre-
sents the notional amounts, at contract exchange rates, and the weighted average contractual foreign currency
exchange rates. The buy amount represent the United States dollar equivalent of commitments to purchase for-
eign currencies, and the sell amount represent the United States dollar equivalent commitments to sell foreign
currencies. These forward contracts mature prior to September 2001.

2000

Wide area networks/storage area networks $ 536,566

Wireless terminals/wireless infrastructure 473,738

Computation 277,483

  Total consolidated revenues $ 1,287,787

2000

Wide area networks/storage area networks $ 166,224

Wireless terminals/wireless infrastructure 156,046

Computation 62,298

Acquisition, restructuring and other non-recurring costs (55,729)

Interest income and other 64,964

Interest expense (23,633)

  Income before provision for income taxes $ 370,170

2000 1999 1998

United States $ 657,388 $ 377,625 $ 338,038

Europe 281,574 131,528 91,984

Japan 133,669 69,041 53,298

Other foreign countries 215,156 166,848 105,595

  Total revenues $ 1,287,787 $ 745,042 $ 588,915

2000 1999

United States $ 498,843 $ 276,576

Philippines 65,503 77,426

Other foreign countries 7,129 4,204

  Total assets $ 571,475 $ 358,206
��



(In thousands, except contract rate)

Note 15: Subsequent Events

On March 22, 2001, Cypress completed an agreement with a lessor in relation to the construction of an approx-
imate 111,000 square foot general purpose office building on the northeast lot of Champion Court, adjacent to
the current executive offices. The arrangement will include a 34.5-year ground lease granted by Cypress to the
lessor. The lessor will construct the building on the lot, with Cypress acting as its construction agent.  The
agreement allows for an eighteen-month construction period followed by a five-year lease term. During the
lease term, payments due vary based on LIBOR plus a spread  based on a total lease balance of up to approxi-
mately $21 million. Cypress is obligated to provide collateral equivalent to 86.2% of the then existing lease
balance. At the end of the lease term, Cypress shall have the option to purchase the building.

On March 22, 2001, Cypress employees were offered the opportunity to exchange their stock options for a
promise to issue new options six months and one day after the cancellation of the forfeited options.  The offer
to exchange options expires on April 4, 2001. The new options will be granted on October 8, 2001 with an
exercise price equal to the NYSE closing price on the same day.  Any grant issued prior to March 20, 2001 will
be eligible for this program. The new option will be issued with 12 months vested as of October 8, 2001 and
the balance will vest 1/60th per month regardless of how many options were vested at the time of the cancella-
tion election.

On March 16, 2001, the Board of Directors of Cypress authorized the repurchase of an additional 5 million
shares of Cypress’s outstanding common stock, bringing the total shares authorized in the repurchase program
to 15 million. Since December 31, 2000, 1.0 million shares were repurchased at an average cost of $21.01 per
share. In conjunction with the stock repurchase, the Board of Directors authorized the additional sale of put
warrants. Cypress sold put warrants through private placements for which Cypress received $8.1 million
between January 1, 2001 and March 22, 2001. Cypress had a maximum potential obligation to purchase 3.3
million shares of its common stock at an aggregate price of $68.1 million as of March 22, 2001. The put war-
rants have various expiration periods through October 2001. Cypress has the right to settle the put warrants
with cash or settle the difference between the exercise price and the fair market value at the exercise date with
stock or cash. No amount was classified out of stockholders’ equity in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet.

On February 23, 2001, Cypress completed its acquisition of International Microcircuits Inc. (“IMI”), a com-
pany specializing in timing technology integrated circuits. IMI’s product portfolio includes programmable
clocks, clock distribution products, electromagnetic interference suppression devices, and application-specific
products. Cypress paid approximately $126 million in cash and options to acquire Cypress common stock.
Cypress will account for the transaction by the purchase accounting method.

On February 5, 2001, Cypress announced the signing of a definitive agreement to acquire HiBand Semicon-
ductors, Inc., a provider of mixed-signal integrated circuits for high-speed communications markets. The
acquisition, which has an estimated value of $32 million, is expected to close during March 2001 and will be
accounted for by the purchase accounting method. Closing is subject to regulatory approvals and other cus-
tomary conditions. 

Notional
Amount

Weighted
Average

Contract Rate

Forward Contracts - buy/(sell):

  Japanese Yen $ (24,391) 106.6

  French Francs (1,015) 7.385

  Euro $ 16,877 0.871
�	



Report of Independent Accountants
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
of Cypress Semiconductor Corporation.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated state-
ments of operations, of stockholders’ equity, and of cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Cypress Semiconductor Corporation and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000 in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accor-
dance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence sup-
porting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
January 22, 2001

Except as to Notes 11 and 15, which are as of March 22, 2001
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About Your Investment
Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol “CY”. The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the low, high, and closing price for the common
stock. We have not paid cash dividends during our two preceding fiscal years and have no present
plans to do so. At December 31, 2000 there were approximately 88,000 holders of record of our
Common Stock.

Price Range of Common Stock ($)

Low High             Close

Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2000:
First Quarter 28.94 53.19 49.31
Second Quarter 39.19 57.00  42.25
Third Quarter 32.00  55.56  41.56
Fourth Quarter 18.81 41.50  19.69

Fiscal year ended January 2, 2000:
First Quarter 8.06 10.19 9.31
Second Quarter 9.81 18.00  18.00
Third Quarter  17.81  28.50  23.50
Fourth Quarter 22.13 33.44  32.38
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Summary Annual and Quarterly Financial Data
(In thousands, except per-share data, percents and employee headcount)

(Unaudited) Year Ended

Dec. 31, Jan. 2, Jan. 3, Dec. 29, Dec. 30, Jan. 1, Jan. 2, Jan. 3,
2000 2000 1999 1997 1996 1996 1995 1994

Revenues $ 1,287,787  $ 745,042  $ 588,915  $ 632,969  $ 600,032  $ 645,823  $ 432,368  $ 327,388

Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenues  564,839  408,885  429,599  424,462  368,852  305,949  238,082  193,248

Research and 
development 184,471  136,858  116,871  105,570  96,610  80,706  59,089  54,467

Selling, general and
administrative 153,909  113,601  97,267  85,062  72,356  78,093  56,800  49,501

Acquisition-related
non-recurring costs 56,214  37,902  —  3,669  —   —  — 18,271

Restructuring and 
other nonrecurring 
costs (benefits) (485)  (3,811)  60,737  9,882  10,932 17,800 —  (408)

Total costs and expenses 958,948  693,435  704,474  628,645  548,750  482,548  353,971  315,079

Operating income (loss) 328,839  51,607  (115,559)  4,324  51,282  163,275  78,397  12,309

Interest expense (23,633) (9,643)  (11,276)  (8,461)  (7,743)  (7,543)  (4,747)  (935)

Interest income and other 64,964  53,205  14,133  13,442  9,349  8,784  6,529  2,269

Income (loss) before
income taxes 370,170 95,169 (112,702) 9,305 52,888 164,516 80,179 13,643

(Provision) benefit
for income taxes (92,862) (7,039) 11,108 (6,109) (30,476) (59,343) (29,628) (4,774)

Net income (loss) $ 277,308  $ 88,130  $(101,594)  $ 3,196  $ 22,412  $ 105,173  $ 50,551 $ 8,869

Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 2.29  $ 0.81  $ (0.97)  $ 0.03  $ 0.24  $ 1.13  $ 0.62  $ 0.11
Diluted $ 2.03  $ 0.76  $ (0.97)  $ 0.03  $ 0.23  $ 0.99  $ 0.55  $ 0.11

Weighted average common and
common equivalent shares
outstanding:

Basic  121,126  108,156  105,238 102,920  92,317  92,735  81,917  77,318
Diluted  144,228  115,527  105,238  110,820  97,767  109,672  96,096  82,658

Depreciation/
amortization expense 145,411  108,886  117,204  114,350  100,506  67,203  46,576  44,192

Cash, cash equivalents 
and short-term
 investments 884,601  280,947  174,513  213,939  98,353  166,387  201,618  86,479

Stockholders’ equity 1,327,668 718,620  517,825  658,643  514,287  495,711  360,648  274,656

Number of employees 4,435  3,859  3,068  3,007  2,442  2,078  1,589  1,385

Percent of revenue

Cost of revenue 44% 55% 73% 67% 61% 47% 55% 59%

Research & development 14% 18% 20% 17% 16% 12% 14% 17%

Selling, general &
administrative 12% 15% 17% 13% 12% 12% 13% 15%

Total costs and expenses 74% 93% 120% 99% 91% 75% 82% 96%

Operating income (loss) 26% 7% –20% 1% 9% 25% 18% 4%
��



Summary Annual and Quarterly Financial Data
(In thousands, except per-share data and employee headcount)

Three Months Ended

Dec. 31, Oct. 1, July 2, April 2, Jan. 2, Oct. 3, July 4, April 4,
2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 1999 1999 1999

  $ 370,025 $ 352,687 $ 300,834 $ 264,241  $ 219,908  $ 195,016  $ 170,825  $ 159,293

151,087  147,783 135,143  130,826  114,402  105,514  95,671  93,298

 
55,382  47,954 42,742  38,393  36,755  33,862  34,067  32,174

43,420  40,350  36,513  33,626  33,921  27,879  26,850  24,951

8,856 35,557 7,592  4,209  26,084    2,005  6,070 3,743

— —  (485)  — —  —  (100)  (3,711)

 258,745  271,644  221,505  207,054  211,162  169,260  162,558  150,455

111,280 81,043 79,329 57,187 8,746 25,756 8,267 8,838

 (5,613)  (7,953)  (5,501)  (4,566)  (2,385)  (2,468)  (2,465)  (2,325)

 21,260  16,987  12,315  14,402  41,838  4,218  3,871  3,278

126,927 90,077 86,143 67,023 48,199 27,506 9,673 9,791

(29,337) (28,028) (20,514) (14,983)  (2,584)  (2,259)  (1,210)  (986)

 $ 97,590  $ 62,049  $ 65,629  $ 52,040  $ 45,615  $ 25,247  $ 8,463  $ 8,805

$ 0.75  $ 0.51 $ 0.56  $ 0.45  $ 0.40  $ 0.23  $ 0.08  $ 0.09
$ 0.68  $ 0.45 $ 0.50  $ 0.40  $ 0.35  $ 0.21  $ 0.08  $ 0.09

129,335  121,139  118,186  115,841 113,450  110,982  107,484 100,709
 147,575  148,474  142,113  138,750 130,513  120,932  112,838  104,598

46,919  38,493  34,160  29,997  27,549  26,526  27,355 27,456

884,601  831,245  840,378  517,163  280,947  215,107  181,071  238,870

 1,327,668  1,139,002  897,399  794,984  718,620  650,601  589,833  563,310

 4,435  4,277  3,896  3,876  3,859 3,717  3,536  3,163

41% 42% 45% 50% 52% 54% 56% 59%

15% 14% 14% 15% 17% 17% 20% 20%

12% 11% 12% 13% 15% 14% 16% 16%

70% 77% 74% 78% 96% 87% 95% 94%

30% 23% 26% 22% 4% 13% 5% 6%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
BOARD OF Eric Benhamou(1,2) Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Board of  3COM Corporation
DIRECTORS Fred B. Bialek Business Consultant

John C. Lewis(1,2,3) Former Chairman of the Board of Amdahl Corporation
James R. Long(1,2) Former Executive Vice President of Nortel Networks
T. J. Rodgers(4) President and Chief Executive Officer
Alan F. Shugart(3) Former Chief Executive Officer of Seagate

T. J. Rodgers, President and Chief Executive Officer

EXECUTIVE Antonio Alvarez, Vice President, Memory Products Division and Reasearch and Development
VICE PRESIDENTS Anthony Cantu, Vice President, Quality/Reliability Assurance

Emmanuel Hernandez, Vice President, Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer
Jeff Kaszubinski, Vice President, Engineering
Paul Keswick, Vice President, New Product Development 
Ilbok Lee, Vice President, Timing Technology 
Robert McConnell, Vice President, President, Cypress MicroSystems, Inc
Daniel Morris, Vice President, WAN/SAN Business Segment
Christopher Norris, Vice President, Data Communications
Cathal Phelan, Vice President, Interface Products Division
Ralph Schmitt, Vice President, Marketing and Sales
Christopher Seams, Vice President, Worldwide Wafer Manufacturing
Steve Whelan, Vice President, Wireless Business Segment
Arthur Woodward, Vice President, Worldwide Manufacturing

LEGAL MATTERS Questions regarding legal matters should be directed to:
Emmanuel Hernandez, Vice President, Finance and Administration
and Chief Financial Officer

LEGAL COUNSEL Wilson, Sonsini, Goodrich & Rosati
650 Page Mill Road
Palo Alto, California 94304-1050
(650) 493-9300

INDEPENDENT PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
ACCOUNTANTS 10 Almaden Blvd., Suite 1600

San Jose, California 95113
(408) 817-3700

CORPORATE Cypress Semiconductor Corporation Telephone: (408) 943-2600
HEADQUARTERS 3901 North First Street Facsimile: (408) 943-4730

San Jose, California 95134-1599 Internet:  http://www.cypress.com

REGISTRAR AND EquiServe, L.P.
TRANSFER AGENT 150 Royall Street

Canton, MA 02021
(781) 575-3981

(1) Member of the Audit Committee
(2) Member of the Compensation Committee
(3) Member of the Nominating Committee
(4) Founder

The Letter to Shareholders, the 2000 Annual Report cover, and “Management's Discussion and Analysis” may contain forward-looking statements
about the prospects for Cypress as well as the semiconductor industry more generally including without limitation statements about revenues for
the first quarter of fiscal 2001, increases in gross margin, rate of growth of research and development expenditures as a percent of revenues, rate of
growth of selling, general and administrative expenses, profitability goals, revenue goals, growth rate goals, market share goals, market size and
growth projections, new product introductions, planned manufacturing capacity, and efficiency and cost goals. Actual results could differ materi-
ally from those described in the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors including, but not limited to, the factors identified in the
Letter to Shareholders, the 2000 Annual Report cover, and the Management's Discussion and Analysis section, particularly “Factors Affecting
Future Results,” as well as the following:
(1) increased competition which could result in lost sales or price erosion;
(2) changes in product demand by the electronics and semiconductor industries, which are noted for rapidly changing needs, coupled with an inabil-

ity by Cypress to generate product enhancements or new product introductions which keep pace with or meet those rapidly changing needs;
(3) failure by Cypress to develop or introduce successfully new products in areas of expected new or increased demand, or development and intro-

duction of superior new products serving those areas by others;
(4) failure of expected growth in demand for, or areas of expected new demand for, semiconductor products to materialize;
(5) failure to successfully bring on line and utilize additional manufacturing capacity, or to transition existing capacity to new uses;
(6) inability to develop and/or adopt more advanced manufacturing technology;
(7) inability of Cypress’s patents or other proprietary rights to ensure adequate protection against encroachment on Cypress’s technology by com-

petitors; and
(8) failure to attract and/or retain key personnel. 
Cypress employees produced this report to provide the maximum amount of useful information on the Company in an accessible form, at a minimum of cost. We appreciate
their time and effort.
Cypress (with logo), EZ-USB, HOTLink, and RoboClock are registered trademarks and Cypress, Cypress Semiconductor, the Cypress logotype, Deep Sync, Delta39K,
Driving the Communications Revolution, FX2, HOTLinkII, InfinPHY, MediaClock, MoBL, More Battery Life, NoBL, No Bus Latency, PSI, and RoboClockII are
trademarks of Cypress Semiconductor Corporation. Programmable System-on-Chip and PSoC are trademarks of Cypress MicroSystems, Inc.
Other names may be service marks or trademarks of their respective holders and may be registered in certain jurisdictions.
Customer photographs used in this report were provided by Alcatel, Cisco Systems, Huawei Technologies, Lantern Networks, Motorola BCS, and Redback Networks,
and are used by permission. The product names are trademarks or registered trademarks of the respective companies.

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of 
stockholders for Cypress 

Semiconductor Corporation will 
be held on Thursday, May 3, 2001 
10:00 a.m., local time, at Cypress’s 
offices at 3939 North First Street, 
San Jose, California 95134-1599.

COMMON STOCK

Cypress Semiconductor 
Corporation’s common stock is 
traded on the New York Stock 

Exchange under the symbol “CY.”

FORM 10K

A copy of Cypress’s Annual 
Report on Form 10K, as filed with 

the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, will be made 

available without charge to all 
stockholders upon written request 
to Cypress. Direct requests to the 
Attention of the Chief Financial 
Officer at the corporate office 

listed above.



Increasing New Product Complexity

Product-Based Solutions

System-Based Solutions

With a focus on emerging communications applications, Cypress combines its intellectual property (IP) in programmable logic, high-speed communications
links, communications memory and timing technology to produce solutions optimized for high-speed systems that feed bandwidth-hungry Internet 
applications and other communications markets. These solutions can be categorized as single-function product-based solutions, and highly integrated
system-based solutions.

Our physical-layer (PHY) designs have increased in speed and port density to meet the backplane and port bandwidth requirements of the Internet
infrastructure. Our OC-48 PHY, targeted at high-speed port solutions, converts serial data to parallel format at 2.488 Gbps while maintaining full 
compliance to the rigorous Bellcore specifications for signal clarity that are important to our customers. Our Quad HOTLink IITM communications 
solution for data transfer and routing in advanced network switching systems offers the flexibility of four ports operating from 200 Mbps to 1.556 Gbps.

Physical Layers

OC-48 Transceiver

MediaClockTM

Quad HOTLink IITM

As system speed and complexity increase in communications and other digital systems, the demand for innovative timing solutions will continue to
grow. Cypress offers the industry's broadest portfolio of timing solutions, providing programmability, precision skew control, differential inputs, and low
noise. Our MediaClockTM for set-top box applications was specially designed for use in this high-volume broadband application. MediaClock is the first
Cypress product to use our new proprietary SONOS (Silicon Oxide Nitride Oxide Silicon) non-volatile memory technology. RoboClock® II is our 
second-generation programmable skew clock buffer that delivers performance up to 200 MHz. RoboClock II is the first product of Cypress's new 3.3-
volt, double-layer-metal, 0.25-micron BiCMOS process, which provides an optimal mix of speed, power, and cost relative to competitive processes.

Timing Products

Many types of Cypress intellectual property have been integrated into programmable product  solutions. Our programmable system-on-chipTM

(PSoCTM) microcontroller combines programmable logic, analog blocks, and interconnect to create a custom microcontroller that can be programmed
and used like a conventional microcontroller. Our Delta39KTM complex programmable logic devices (CPLDs), based on a 0.18 micron, six-layer metal
CMOS logic process, combines 15,000-to-350,000 gates of logic with large blocks of single-port and dual-port communications RAM, and 
high-performance phase-locked loop (PLL) circuitry that feeds four global clock networks.

Programmable 
Integration

By integrating key pieces of intellectual property, Cypress has attacked the core of emerging communications markets, such as Storage Area
Networking. USB was originally targeted toward connections between PCs and high-speed peripherals, such as digital cameras, scanners, printers and
broadband connections. Cypress put its 480-Mbps USB 2.0 solution, the EZ-USB® FX2TM controller chip, to work in mass-storage solutions such as
hard disk drives and RAID (redundant array of independent disks) storage systems. Its InfiniPHYTM transceiver (CY7B9260V) is a point-to-point 
communications building block for high-bandwidth, fabric-based switching networks. This standard is being adopted in many new storage applications.

Market Driven

RoboClock® II

PSoCTM

EZ-USB® FX2TM

Delta39KTM

InfiniPHYTM



The Right Products 
For The Right Markets

Cypress components drive many of the world’s leading electronic systems, targeting communications
markets such as wide area networks (WAN), storage area networks (SAN), wireless terminals (WIT)
and wireless infrastructure (WIN).
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Alcatel’s One Touch 300 series mobile phone, designed with
Cypress’s MoBLTM (More Battery LifeTM) SRAM, offers access to the
Internet using Wireless Access Protocol (WAP) technology.

Lantern Communications’ Metro Packet Switch (MPS) optimizes the 
delivery of Ethernet services with Quality of Service (QoS) guarantees and
cost efficiencies not achievable with other technologies. Cypress CPLDs
(Complex Programmable Logic Devices) for critical circuitry are key 
components that are used on three boards of the Lantern MPS.

Redback Networks’ Services Management System uses multiple
Cypress communications products, including synchronous SRAMs,
physical layers (PHYs) and timing technology products.

Huawei Technologies Co.'s Model 312 GSM basestation features large
capacity, high integration and low power consumption; its design meets the
requirements of telecom operators in terms of capacity, configuration, 
installation, power supply and transmission cost. The 312 GSM basestation
uses Cypress SRAMs, PHYs and timing products.

The Cisco Catalyst® 6500 is a high-performance, multilayer switching solution 
for campus networks. Cypress Roboclock®, NoBLTM (No Bus LatencyTM)
SRAMs, multiports and other timing products help make this possible.

The Motorola DigiCipher® HDTV Encoder compresses a 
1.4-Gbps baseband HDTV input down to less than 10 Mbps 
bit rates, compliant with MPEGII and ATSC standards. A
bank of 64 1-Mbit Cypress Deep SyncTM FIFOs are used 
to buffer the base band HD input before processing.

Driving the Communications RevolutionTM

DigiCipher® is a registered trademark of Motorola, Inc.


